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Foreword & Statement of responsibilities 
 
This document sets out the Financial Statements for Barnet Council, the Council’s Pension Fund 
Statements and Group Accounts. 
 
The Authority’s Responsibilities 
 
The Authority is required to: 
 

• make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure that 
one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In Barnet that 
officer is the Chief Finance Officer (CFO), Clive Medlam. 

 
• manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient  and effective use of resources and 

safeguard it assets. 
 

• approve the Statement of Accounts. 
 
Internal Financial Control 
 
The Council  recognises its responsibilities to ensure proper financial management and control of its 
affairs. The Council approves an annual revenue and capital budget and publishes annual accounts, 
which are approved by the Council and subject to external audit. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer reports to the Chief Executive Officer, Nick Walkley, who has direct 
management responsibility for the Internal Audit Section, which maintains a regular review of the 
Council’s financial systems and investigates any irregularities that arise. Further information is 
contained within the Statement on Internal Control. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer’s responsibilities 
 
The CFO is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Statement of Accounts in accordance 
with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice in Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom. 
 
In preparing the Statement of Accounts, the CFO has: 
 

• Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 
• Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; 
• Complied with the Code of Practice. 

 
The CFO has also: 
 

• Kept proper accounting records which were up to date; 
• Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities 

 
The CFO should sign and date the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2006. 
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The Statement of Accounts 
 
This details out the process in place during 2005/06 for ensuring proper financial management and 
control. It then reviews the effectiveness and raises any major issues that have arisen in the year. 
 
Statement of Accounting Policies 
 
An explanation of the basis on which the accounts have been prepared and their compliance with the 
guidance of the relevant regulatory bodies.  
 
Consolidated Revenue Account 
 
This summarises the income and expenditure of all the Council’s services. The Account also shows 
how the Council’s services are funded: the four main sources being specific income, council tax,  
non-domestic rates and government grants.  
 
Housing Revenue Account 
 
This records the Authority’s statutory obligation to account separately for the costs of its landlord role. 
It shows major elements of housing revenue expenditure – maintenance, administration and capital 
financing costs – and how these are met by rents, housing subsidy and other income.  
 
Collection Fund Statement 
 
The Council is responsible for collecting council tax and non-domestic rates, the latter on behalf of 
the government. The proceeds of council tax are distributed to two preceptors: the Council itself and 
the Greater London Authority. The Fund shows the income due from council tax, non-domestic rates 
and the application of the proceeds.  
 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 
 
This records the Authority’s year-end financial position. It shows the balances and reserves at the 
Authority’s disposal, its long-term debt, net current assets or liabilities, and summarised information 
on the fixed assets held. It excludes the Pension Fund.  
 
Statement of Total Movement in Reserves 
 
This details out all the Council’s reserves and how they have moved in the year.  
 
Cashflow Statement 
 
This summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with third parties for 
capital and revenue transactions.  
 
Group Accounts 
 
The Authority has only one owned subsidiary company, which is an Arms Length Management 
Organisation (ALMO), Barnet Homes Ltd, which it has full control and influence over. The primary 
aim in establishing this company is to remove it from public sector borrowing controls and to allow a 
greater commercial freedom. These Groups Accounts therefore show the consolidated position for 
the Council. For statutory purposes Barnet Homes Ltd produce their own statement of accounts. 
 
Pension Fund Account 
 
The Pension Fund Account shows the contributions to the fund during 2005/06 and the benefits paid 
from it. The Net Assets Statement sets out the financial position for the Fund as at 31 March 2006. 
The fund is separately managed by the Council acting as trustee and its accounts are separate from 
the Council’s.  
 
 



London Borough of Barnet Statement of Accounts 2005/06 
  

6

Review of the Financial Year 
 
The council have revised their priorities to more closely reflect their manifesto. They are now: 
 

• A bright future for children and young people 
• Supporting the vulnerable 
• Clean, green and safe 
• A successful suburb 
• Stronger and healthier 

 
Integral to the achievement of these priorities are closer links with budgets and resource planning. 
 
This review sets out the Council’s financial performance in its four principal finance areas: 
 

• The General Fund 
• The Housing Revenue Fund 
• Capital Investment 
• Balance Sheet 

 
This commentary is also supplemented by a review of the Pension Fund and Group Accounts. 
 
The General Fund 
 
The General Fund  contains the income and expenditure relating to the services of the Council, other 
than Council housing. In 2005/06 the Council planned net expenditure of £361m as set out in the 
following table.   
 

2005/06 Original Council 
Spending Plan

Actual Net 
Spend

Difference 
(Actual-Original)

£'000 £'000 £'000
Individual School’s Budget 147,253 146,776 (477)
Other Council Services & Levies 228,571 223,537 (5,034)
Contribution to Balances 2,300 5,959 3,659
Contribution from Special Parking 
Account and Charitable Funds (6,788) (4,936) 1,852
Amount to be met by Government 
Grant and Council Tax 371,336 371,336 0
Revenue Support Grant (130,374) (130,374) 0
Non-domestic Rates (108,093) (108,093) 0
Collection Fund Transfer 1,303 1,303 0
Council Tax (134,172) (134,172) 0
Contribution to Balances 0 0 0  
 
Of this schools have overspent by £477k.  

 
The detail of the Council‘s spending is set out in the Consolidated Revenue Account which shows the 
majority of spending was on education (£242m), social services (£127m) and housing functions 
including benefits (£255m). Excluding internal recharges the council spent some £778m on revenue 
expenditure (i.e. the day to day running cost of services). The following graph shows how this was 
paid for: 
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Sources of Revenue Financing (£771m)

Charges for goods and 
services (£135m, 18%)

Housing (£40m) and 
other Rents (Total 

£45m, 6%)

Council Tax  (134m, 
17%)

Specific Government 
Grants  (219m, 28%) Revenue Supprt Grant 

and National Non-
domestic Rates Pool 

(238m, 31%)

 
A key aspect is that over 50% of expenditure is funded by government either through general or 
specific grants. Local funding of the Housing Revenue Account by housing rents and Council Tax 
funding of General Fund Services accounts for just under 25% of income in total.   
 
Balances 
 
When the 2005/06 budget was approved by the council in March 2005, the estimated 1 April 2005 
General Fund balance was £5m (excluding schools). The council also had estimated specific 
earmarked reserves of £1.04m as at 1 April 2005.  
 
The final position shows a General Fund balance of £10.49m and specific reserves of £5.376m. 
Whilst this is a significant improvement of the position at the end of 2004/05, the level of balances 
remains a key consideration when setting the annual budget and the 2006/07 budget was set at a 
level to continue to restore working balances to a reasonable level over the coming years. 
 
Housing Revenue Account 
 
The Housing Revenue Account is a statement of the income and expenditure on Council housing. 
The Council is landlord for 11,097 dwellings and the income and expenditure relating to these is ring-
fenced, that is the Council is prevented by legislation from subsidising the cost of council housing 
from its General Fund and vice versa. 
 
In 2005/06, the Council spent £96.1 million on its Council housing and had income of £49 million. 
After financing and appropriation adjustments, there was a deficit of £2.1 million on the account. 
 
Capital Investment 
 
Capital expenditure reflects the spend on tangible fixed assets (buildings and equipment) and 
intangible assets (software licences) which yields benefit to the authority and the services it provides 
for a period greater than one year. It includes specific grants given to third parties mainly for housing 
and regeneration purposes. 

 
The final revised capital budget for 2005/06 was £86.335m. The total amount spent on Barnet’s 
capital assets in 2005/06 was £78.932m. The total expenditure includes amounts funded by schools 
from revenue contributions and other resources and Transport for London (TfL) grant allocations.  

 
The difference between budget and outturn is due to slippage on various projects. In addition to the 
rolling programme of works to roads (£10.3m) and repairs and improvements to Council Dwellings 
(£24.9m), there have been major investments during the year on improving education infrastructure 
and repairing existing school facilities (£17.5), modernising the council’s technology and staffing 
structures including a new computer system (£11.7), assistance to Housing Associations (£2.9m), 
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Regeneration including re-acquisition of properties from right to buy purchasers on the Grahame 
Park and Stonegrove regeneration estates in the event of hardship (£6.1m), adult re-provisioning 
programme (£2.5m) and £1.5 million on recycling and other Environmental projects. 
 
Capital Financing 
 
The Prudential Code, a system governing local authority capital expenditure was introduced on 1st 
April 2004. Local authorities are now free to borrow by use of finance capital schemes without prior 
agreement from Central Government. Before undertaking such borrowing, the council is required to 
ensure that all external borrowing is within prudent and sustainable levels, that capital expenditure 
plans are affordable and that treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with 
professional good practice. 
 
The Council has borrowing facilities with the Public Works Loan Board and the council’s bankers. In 
2005/06 the council funded its capital expenditure by use of borrowing (54%), capital receipts (13%), 
grants (17%), and Housing Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) and other revenue sources (16%).  
 

Sources of Capital Financing
Total £77.28m (cash only)

Borrowings - £41.76m, 
54%

Capital receipts - 
£10.47m, 13%

Grants - £21.63m, 17%

Other revenue sources - 
£3.42m, 16%

 
Other than grants and contributions towards specific capital schemes, the main sources of finance 
continue to be borrowing and capital receipts arising from the sale of fixed assets.  

 
The largest source of capital finance in 2005/06 was borrowing, 55% of which is supported by 
Central Government. Total borrowing at the 31st March 2006 amounted to £105.5m. The sale of 
assets together with various other sources of income such as planning gains and partnerships with 
the private sector will play an important role in supporting the Council’s future capital expenditure 
plans. 
 
Pension Fund 
 
The Pension Fund is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme and funds, from contributions 
from members of the scheme and the Council, the pensions of council staff, and teachers. In 
2005/06, the fund made payments to pensioners of £25.4m and received contributions of £27.5m 
(£7.2m from members and £20.4 from the employers). 
 
The Fund is worth £497.8m, most of which is invested in the stock market. In 2005/06 the fund 
increased in value by £90.3m following the overall trend in the UK and global stock markets. 
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The Statement of the Chief Finance Officer 
 
The required financial statements appear on pages 43-89 and have been prepared in 
accordance with the accounting policies set out on pages 38-42. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Clive Medlam BSc., CPFA, 
Chief Finance Officer 
 
 
 
 
Statement of the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 
 
I confirm these accounts were approved by the Audit Committee on behalf of the London 
Borough of Barnet at the meeting held on 29 June 2006. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cllr Jeremy Davies 
Chairman of Audit Committee 
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PUBLISHED PRIOR TO AUDIT 
 
Independent Auditors’ Report to London Borough of Barnet 
 
We have audited the statement of accounts on pages 43 to 82 which have been prepared in 
accordance with the accounting policies applicable to local authorities as set out on pages 38 to 42 
and the Pension Fund accounts, on page 83 to 89, which have been prepared in accordance with the 
accounting policies applicable to pension funds set out on pages 90 to 91. 
 
This report is made solely to London Borough of Barnet in accordance with Part II of the Audit 
Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 54 of the Statement of 
Responsibilities of Auditors and of Audited Bodies, prepared by the Audit Commission. To the fullest 
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume  responsibility to anyone other than the Council 
and the members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
 
Respective responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer and Auditors 
 
The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the statement of accounts in 
accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom 2004.  Our responsibilities, as independent auditors, are established by statute, the 
Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission and our profession’s ethical guidance. We 
report to you our opinion as to whether the statement of accounts present fairly: 
 

• the financial position of the Council and its income and expenditure for the year, 

• the financial transactions of its Pension Fund during the year and the amount and disposition 
of the Fund’s assets and liabilities, other than liabilities to pay pensions and benefits after the 
end of the scheme year. 

We review whether the statement on internal control reflects compliance with CIPFA’s guidance ‘The 
Statement on Internal Control in Local Government: Meeting the Requirements of the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2003’ published on 2 April 2004. We report if it does not comply with proper 
practices specified by CIPFA or if the statement is misleading or inconsistent with other information 
we are aware of from our audit of the statement of accounts.   
 
We are not required to consider whether the statement on internal control covers all risks and 
controls, or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s corporate governance 
procedures or its risk and control procedures.  Our review was not performed for any purpose 
connected with any specific transaction and should not be relied upon for any such purpose.  
 
We read the other information published with the statement of accounts and consider the implications 
for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the 
statement of accounts. 
 
Basis of audit opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Audit 
Practice issued by the Audit Commission, which requires compliance with relevant auditing 
standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. 
 
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures 
in the statement of accounts. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and 
judgments made by the council in the preparation of the statement of accounts, and of whether the 
accounting policies are appropriate to the council's circumstances, consistently applied and 
adequately disclosed.  
 
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we 
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance 
that the statement of accounts are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other 
irregularity or error.  In forming our opinion, we evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of 
the information in the statement of accounts. 
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion the statement of accounts present fairly the financial position of London Borough of 
Barnet as at 31 March 2006 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended. 
 
Opinion on the pension fund accounts 
 
In our opinion the statement of accounts present fairly the financial transactions of London Borough 
of Barnet Pension Fund during the year ended 31 March 2006, and the amount and disposition at 
that date of its assets and liabilities, other than liabilities to pay pensions and benefits after the end of 
the scheme year.   
 
Certificate 
 
We have carried out the audit of the accounts in accordance with the requirements of the Audit 
Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Audit  Practice issued by the Audit Commission. The audit 
cannot be formally concluded and an audit certificate issued until we have completed our 
consideration of matters brought to our attention by local authority electors. We are satisfied that 
these matters do not  have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signature: …………………………………. Date: ……………………………………….. 
 
RSM Robson Rhodes LLP, Bryanston Court, Selden Hill, Hemel Hempstead HERTS. 
HP2 4TN 
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STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL – PUBLISHED PRIOR TO 
OFFICIAL SIGN OFF 
 
INTRODUCTION 
In compliance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 the Authority is required to 
provide a publication of a Statement on Internal Control (SIC) with the financial statements.  
 
Although it is published with the financial statements the SIC is a broad reflection of the 
whole governance of the council, and sets out the controls in place that are designed to 
ensure:- 
• the council’s policies are put into practice and that values are met; 
• laws and regulations are complied with; 
• required processes are adhered to; 
• financial statements and other published information are accurate and reliable; 
• human, financial and other resources are managed efficiently and effectively; 
• services are delivered efficiently and effectively. 
 
After its approval by the council and its External Auditors, the SIC is signed by the Leader 
and Chief Executive, indicating the acceptance of the SIC by the Council. 
 
In considering whether to approve the SIC, each Head of Service or Director has been 
asked to produce, and sign, a mini SIC covering their area of responsibility focussing on the 
above criteria. This provides documented, relevant and reliable evidence to support the 
disclosures made.  
 
Further consideration of the accuracy of the statements made in the SIC have been 
conducted by key officers within the council, including (but not exclusively) the Chief 
Financial Officer, Monitoring Officer and Chief Internal Auditor. 
 
This process is further evidenced by an Internal Control Checklist process which seeks to 
identify strengths and weaknesses in the processes and procedures that manage 
governance and control across the Council. 
 
The SIC seeks to explain the nature of control and material changes in control exercised 
throughout the whole accounting period.  It identifies any weaknesses in control and sets 
out an action plan to address them.   
 
The SIC is divided into five sections, as follows:- 
 
Section 1   Scope of Responsibility; 

Section 2 Purpose of the System of Internal Control; 

Section 3 Internal Control Environment; 

Section 4 Review of Effectiveness; 

Section 5 Significant Internal Control Issues. 
 
Guidance on the production of a SIC has been gained from publications by the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy and our External Auditors, Robson Rhodes. 
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2005/06 STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
 
Section 1 – Scope of Responsibility 
The council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the 
law and proper standards and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, 
and used efficiently, economically and effectively in providing value for money services to its 
residents. 
 
The council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to 
secure continuous improvement in the way that its functions are exercised, having regard to 
a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness and further improving value for 
money. 
 
In discharging this overall responsibility, the council is also responsible for ensuring that 
there is a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective exercise of council 
functions and which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 
 
Section 2 – Purpose of the System of Internal Control 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than 
to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.  The system of internal 
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the 
achievement of council policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those 
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, 
effectively and economically. 

Section 3 – Internal Control Environment 
The key elements of the internal control environment are set out below. 

Objectives 
The council’s objectives are detailed in the Community Plan, which are also reflected in the 
Corporate Plan.  These are cascaded through Service Plans and targets for service teams 
and individuals.  Monitoring is via the FirstStat programme, Finance and Performance 
Review meetings, Member Challenge events and performance management. 

Policy and Decision Making 
The Local Government Act 2000 and secondary legislation specify the local authority 
functions that are the distinct and quite separate responsibility of the council and the 
executive.  Neither body can become involved with taking decisions on the functions of the 
other, with certain exceptions referred to below.  The Act permits no other bodies in the 
formal decision-making structure other than those described below. 
 
A Council Functions 
 

The council's functions are broadly as follows:- 

 • planning and enforcement; 

• licensing and regulation; 

• a limited number of highway matters mainly concerned with public footpaths 
and bridleways; 

• appeals against decisions; 

• staffing; 
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• electoral management; 

• appointments to other bodies; 

• some other minor functions. 

These functions may be exercised by the full council meeting or be delegated to 
committees or officers.  They cannot be delegated to an individual councillor.  They 
are delegated to the Planning and Environment Committee and the Planning and 
Environment Area Sub-Committees, Appeals Committees, General Functions 
Committee, Licensing Committee and its Sub - Committee, Standards Committee, 
Audit Committee and officers. 

 
In addition, the full council has the power to approve the budget and statutory policy 
framework, but there are limitations imposed by the legislation and included in the 
constitution on how this can be exercised and how disagreements with the executive 
are to be resolved.      
 
This is the only control the council can exert over the functions of the executive - for 
example the control/ accountability exercised via the Overview & Scrutiny 
Committees, and in particular the Cabinet Overview & Scrutiny Committee, which 
operates the statutory call-in process.  
 
Part of each council meeting is set aside for debate on policy development, in which 
all councillors are able to take part.  All councillors are permitted to serve on 
committees discharging council functions.  
 

B. Executive Functions 
 

All other functions of the local authority are the responsibility of the executive, 
which is the Leader and Cabinet – a total of 10 Members, which is the maximum 
permitted by the Act. Substitute or deputy Cabinet Members are not permitted. 

 
Executive functions may be exercised by:- 

• the Cabinet itself; 

• Cabinet Committees (on which only cabinet members can vote or serve, 
although non-voting co-opted persons are allowed); 

• individual Cabinet Members; 

• Area committees (provided they are constituted on a ward basis); 

• officers; 

• joint arrangements with other local authorities. 

 
The Leader is solely responsibility for setting the executive delegation arrangements 
and limits.  The executive is responsible for the preparation of the budget and the 
statutory policy framework for submission to the council.  Otherwise, the executive is 
not subordinate to the council in discharging its functions and cannot be directed by 
the council how to discharge them. 
 

C. Urgent and Emergency Decisions 
 

Decisions taken by the decision takers set out above on both council and executive 
functions are subject to limitations and conditions imposed in the constitution, 
including financial restrictions.  Some of those are varied for urgent decisions (e.g. 
where urgent action is required but might be delayed by following the normal 



London Borough of Barnet Statement of Accounts 2005/06 
  

16

procedures).  In an emergency (e.g. where immediate action is needed to protect life 
or property or to maintain a critical service) there is a fast track  process for taking 
decisions, subject to reports being submitted to the appropriate decision-making 
body afterwards.  

D. Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
 

The functions of Overview and Scrutiny Committees are specified in the Local 
Government Act 2000.  The Health and Social Care Act 2001 also introduced local 
authority scrutiny of health and a requirement for NHS bodies to consult health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s about major changes to health services.  
Activities Overview and Scrutiny Committees may undertake are: 

 
• policy development and review to assist the council and the executive; 

• scrutinising the decisions and performance of the executive and the council, 
council partners, NHS bodies and other public bodies in the area and make 
reports and recommendations to the Council or the Executive where appropriate 

• calling-in for scrutiny of key decisions taken by the executive but not yet 
implemented. 

Key decisions are those significant in financial terms or in their effect on communities 
comprising two or more wards.  The Constitution provides for the scrutiny of Executive 
decisions to be operated solely by the Cabinet Overview and Scrutiny Committee and all 
executive decisions taken by Cabinet, its Committees and Cabinet Members can be 
scrutinised, not just key decisions. Members of the Cabinet cannot be members of 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 

 
Compliance 
Assurance on compliance with policies, procedures, laws and regulations is provided, in 
part, by Internal Audit, that conducts risk based audits on the highest risk areas.  Other 
sources of assurance on compliance come from external audit, other external inspectors 
(e.g. OFSTED, CSCI) and from service management’s own internal control arrangements. 
 
Risk Management  
There has been significant progress in implementing risk management in the council during 
2005-6, with further development of monitoring and reporting of risks across the Council, 
thereby providing the basis for effective risk management policies procedures.  

 

Risk Management processes embedded within the Council 

• the Internal Audit unit continue to review and report on risk management arrangements 
in their interim and annual reports. 

• the Finance and Performance Review process continues to review high level risks whilst 
encompassing close monitoring of service delivery performance, performance against 
budgets and budget reduction targets thus minimising the chances of unachievable 
savings being incorporated in the budget (see note below on the enhancements made 
to the F&PR process.) 

• all committee reports include a section on risks, which contributes to Members being 
better informed prior to deciding on policy and making decisions and increases officer 
understanding and awareness of risk issues. ( see note below on enhancements to the 
reporting of risk to Members) 

• Internal Audit continue to provide a statement in all their interim and annual reports on 
the adequacy of risk management arrangements.  

• Internal Audit’s focus continues to ensure that identified risks have been adequately and 
cost-effectively addressed.  
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2005/6 developments to Risk Management  

• the establishment of a Corporate Risk Manager post within Resources, which 
strengthens the development of risk management without removing the primary 
responsibility for risk management from service managers;. 

• increased External Audit focus on the effectiveness of risk management across the 
Council; 

• the creation of risk registers by all Heads of Service, and the establishment of risk 
management monitoring process within their services; 

• the introduction of risk assessment in the creation of KPPs and Service Plans thereby 
informing the selection of Corporate Risks and subsequent inclusion of those risks in the 
Corporate Plan; 

• the responsibility of Heads of Service to incorporate risks associated with delivering 
service priorities in their Performance Management Plans; 

• a continuous review of risks that may that may impact on the ability to deliver in line with 
the commitments made in their Service Plans for 2006/7. 

• the Finance and Performance Review (F&PR) process now operates on an exception 
basis arising out of risks emerging in budget or performance monitoring. The following 
F&PR sessions where called during 2005/6 

 

2005 Theme 2006 Theme 

June Resources April Children & Families 
 BT’s June Parking 
 Audit   
 Adult Social Services   
 Housing   
 Development   
 CPO   
 Borough Solicitor   
 Committee   
 Environment   
 Highways   
 Planning   
July Children & Families   
 Education   
 Culture   
October Corporate   
 Education   
 Adults   
 Children & Families   
 Environment   
 

• the CFO provides a comprehensive report on to council on the appropriate level of 
balances and reserves which incorporates an assessment of performance against 
forecast savings and potential risks. 

• the Borough Treasurer has developed a corporate financial risk register in tandem with 
work on financial forward planning.  This register highlights financial uncertainties and 
opportunities.  
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• further improvements in capturing and reporting risk to members with all committee 
reports now include a section on risks, thereby contributing to Members being better 
informed prior to deciding on policy and making decisions and increases officer 
understanding and awareness of risk issues 

• all committee reports are recorded on the councils electronic reporting system including 
the section covering risk assessment and mitigation.. 

• a bi-annual Corporate Risks report is presented to Directors' Group for evaluation and 
reporting to Cabinet.  These are closely monitored throughout the year by officers and 
Cabinet. 

• Progress on implementing risk management is monitored by the Audit  Committee. 

• Risk Management is now included in the Leader’s portfolio. 
• Internal Audit is now working more in the area of providing advice and guidance on 

construction and design of controls, which is in line with the draft updated code of 
practice for internal audit which CIPFA are consulting on 

• All projects managed via the Programme Board include a risk assessment in their 
project brief and have a dedicated risk log which is reviewed and reported to the Project 
Board in line with the requirements defined in the Project Initiation Document (PID) 

 

Improvements in Risk Management as a consequence of MCS 

During 2005/6 the Council implemented a new core finance system based on a SAP 
solution. The implementation of the SAP solution brought about significant changes in the 
Councils control environment; 

 

• All financial transactions are now captured in one core system 

• All satellite finance systems outside of SAP (AXIS, Pericles, Swift) all interface 
electronically with the SAP solution. 

• All Department Managers now have direct access to real time financial information with 
drill down capability for variance investigation. 

• All transactions in SAP are recorded and captured for scrutiny. 

• All transactions can be traced back to user input. 

• All user access rights are controlled via user roles which prevent users accessing parts 
of the system that is not appropriate. 

• All user roles are reviewed and audited for possible issues around segregation of duties 

• All purchasing transactions are recorded in SAP. Failure to record the purchase orders 
and goods receipt within SAP prevents payment to the vendor. 

• All claims for expenses are now captured and recorded electronically and payment is 
made through Payroll thereby reducing the need for petty cash or impressed accounts. 

 
Active participation with External Audit 
 

In July 2005 Robson Rhodes conducted an audit on Corporate Risk Management 
Arrangements and published their findings and recommendations in September 2005 

Below details their recommendations and the Council’s response. 
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Robson Rhodes Recommendation Action Taken 

1. The key corporate risks identified as part 

of preparing the Corporate Plan should 

be updated to include any key risks 

identified as part of the quarterly F&PR 

review process. 

Agreed.  This would have occurred in 
2004/5 via Chief Executive action but a 
more systematic process will be put in 
place.  This is likely to include monitoring by 
Directors’ Group and more frequent reports 
to Cabinet. 

The mini-SIC process, linked as it is to 
KPPs, will further strengthen this area. 

Additionally, there is also a register of 
financial risks, uncertainties and 
opportunities that is in the process of being 
compiled. 

2. The Directors’ Group should formally 

define a corporate risk appetite for each 

given service area. 

As part of further embedding risk 
management, the appropriateness of 
corporate and service risk appetites will be 
considered. 

Review of risk management policy and 
guidelines by CRM 

3. Risk management should be included in 

the Council’s managers’ competency 

framework. 

Not agreed.  We are content that the 
guidelines and strategy have been 
adequately publicised and disseminated.  
We do intend to ensure that where 
mitigating actions to key ongoing risks are 
identified that these are added to relevant 
job descriptions. 

4. The likelihood of key corporate risks 

materialising and the impact should they 

materialise should be formally assessed 

and documented and then regularly 

updated during the year. 

This is already in place.  Each identified key 
corporate risk has a separate risk 
assessment prepared which is monitored by 
Directors’ Group and Cabinet.  The 
frequency of this monitoring will increase in 
2005-6. 

Also, the May Management Board 
considered corporate risks which meant 
chief officers had considered corporate risk 
issues twice during the 2004/5 municipal 
year. 

 

5. When preparing the 2004-5 SIC, it is 

important that the SIC group identify all 

the significant weaknesses in internal 

control. We would expect the following to 

be considered: 

• Any unresolved weaknesses raised in 

the 2003-4 SIC; 

• Any significant frauds identified by the 

Agreed and in place – the format for the SIC 
and prior to that the SIFC have previously 
adopted this structure, largely mirroring 
CIPFA guidance.  All bullet points are being 
addressed in the preparation of the 2004-5 
SIC. 

The 2005-6 SIC and mini-SIC process 
represents a significant improvement in 
previous SIC compilations.  External 
Auditors have been consulted at key stages 
and agree that highly effective if 
implemented fully. 
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Corporate Anti-Fraud Team; 

• Internal Audit’s annual report and any 

significant areas of “no assurance”; 

•  External Audit reports issued during 

the year including the Annual Audit 

Letter, the results of the BVPI audit 

and grants certification, this report and 

other “adhoc project” reports. 

• Implement the recommendation about 

taking forward the SIC made in our 

2004 Annual Audit and Inspection 

letter. 

• Implement the recommendations about 

MCS and Internal control made in our 

2004 Annual Audit and Inspection 

letter. 

6. The appropriateness of the Chief Internal 

Auditor as the lead officer for risk 

management should be reconsidered.  

CRM now in post and developing the role 
further 

7. The Council’s priorities and key 

objectives should be the reference point 

for identifying key corporate risks.  

Agreed. Mini-SIC linked to KPPs 

8. At least six monthly and preferably 

quarterly updates on key corporate risks 

should be presented to Cabinet. 

Agreed. In place 

9. Guidance on the need to consider 

emergency / business continuity planning 

as part of considering the mitigating 

actions required to manage a risk should 

be issued. 

Agreed. Separate corporate risk mitigation 
measures in place. 

10. Risk management training should form 

part of the Corporate Learning and 

Development Programme so that 

managers who require this training can 

Not agreed. The appraisal process will 
identify those individuals who require further 
development in this area.   
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attend. 

11. The risk management strategy and / or 

guidelines should be more explicit in 

encouraging well managed risk taking 

where it has good potential to realise 

sustainable improvements. 

Covered under risk appetite section. 

12. The lead officer for risk management 

should ensure that the risk management 

strategy and guidelines are reviewed on 

an annual basis. 

Agreed.   

13. The risk management guidelines should 

be updated to include: 

• Assigning monetary or other numerical 

value to risk where practicable; 

• A glossary of standard risk 

management terms; 

This will be considered during the annual 
review of the risk management policy and 
guidelines. 

14. As part of implementing the mini SIC 

process, a review of the effectiveness of 

risk management should be performed at 

the end of the mini SIC process to assess 

whether risk management has resulted in 

improved: 

• Decision and policy making; 

• Handling of cross cutting issues; 

• Planning and target setting; 

• Management of risks to the public; 

• Achievement of business objectives. 

This will be considered during the 
construction of the 2005-6 SIC.   

Risk sections in committee papers show that 
decision and policy making have been 
improved as a result. 

Internal Audit’s review of risk management 
in 2006-7 will also address 

 
Use of Resources   
Effective and efficient use of resources is achieved through a range of review processes 
linked to the annual service planning cycle.  These include: 
 
• In delivering on the 'Use of Resources' aspect of the Comprehensive Performance 

Assessment, a 'Better Use of Resources' project was established in November 2005 to 
address identified weaknesses in corporate systems which resulted in the authority 
being rated at 2 out of 4 in 2005. This project and associated board and delivery teams 
will continue to run through 2006/7 as an effective mechanism to address the most 
significant corporate level use of resources requirements. 
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• FirstStat and Finance and Performance Review (F & PR) - both processes have been 
developed to monitor business performance (including financial performance). FirstStat 
and F & PR are led by the Chief Executive and undertaken on an in-year rolling basis as 
well as in reviewing and setting the forward financial plan. 

• Best Value reviews - conducted across a range of council services in accordance with 
corporate priorities and in meeting legislative requirements.  Business and service 
planning is well established but under constant review for improvements. 

• Member challenge - a rolling programme of finance and performance challenge is 
undertaken by lead members  

• Procurement - the Strategic Procurement Team provides advisory and support services 
on all corporate procurement activity to ensure value for money 

• Internal Audit - IA reviews consider the use of resources as part of the scoping exercise 
for each audit. 

 
Financial Management 
Financial management of the authority is organised through a wide range of processes and 
procedures which are being improved to deliver stronger financial control arrangements.  
Central to all this is Financial Regulations, which form part of the council’s constitution.   

Corporate financial control is also exercised through targeted Finance and Performance 
Review meetings, challenge meetings for Heads of Service led by the lead Members for 
Resources and Policy & Performance in addition to regular reporting of the forecasted 
position for both revenue and capital to Cabinet Resources Committee.  

Beyond this there are individual schemes of control for specific areas, e.g. Treasury 
Management Strategy. 
 
There have been a wide range of improvements and areas of progress during 2005/06 
including: 
 

• The implementation of the financial modules of SAP which has significantly 
enhanced the control environment for the core financial systems; 

• Improved standardised reports from SAP along with increased on-line enquiries from 
the integrated modules within the system has greatly increased the information 
available to budget managers; 

• The Statement of Accounts for 2004/05 were approved and the subsequent audit 
were completed in line with the revised timetable set by central government; 

• A full review of the processes, procedures and guidance for both finance and non 
finance staff following the MCS implementation has been completed; 

• All budget managers have been trained on SAP to enable them to take full 
responsibility for their budgets; 

• In addition, targeted financial training was provided to managers within Adult Social 
Services following the identification of a potential risk by external audit 

• Revenue balances forecast to be approaching the £10m identified by external Audit 
at 31 March 2006 having been £5m at 31 March 2005 and less than £1m  at 31 
march 2004; 

• Introduction and maintenance of the financial risk register to inform the forward 
planning and budget monitoring processes; 

• Development of the Budget Board as a mechanism to enhance corporate ownership 
of the forward planning process and to provide a clear mechanism for robust officer 
level challenge to service proposals; and 

• Further development of the role of the Capital and Assets Group to co-ordinate the 
approval of capital projects in line with corporate priorities; 

  
Further planned work to build on the progress and success already achieved includes: 
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• The embedding of SAP to maximise the benefits and reinforce the new roles and 
responsibilities for financial management; 

• The implementation of Cost Planner module to enable budget managers to 
accurately forecast and manage employee expenditure; 

• The roll out of the Business Warehouse tool to enhance the reporting capability and 
provide additional flexibility for both finance and non-finance staff; 

• The development of a wider corporate financial monitoring framework to incorporate 
revenue and capital, prudential indicators, cash flow, debt management and 
financial risks; 

• Establishing the revised finance service within the Resources restructure to provide 
both support to front line services and clear strategic direction; and 

• The formalisation of the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy  
 
Performance Management 
 
The Corporate Plan is the single improvement document for the authority.   It contains all 
the key priorities and indicators by which achievement against corporate goals are 
measured.  Progress against targets is monitored through a corporate performance 
management system based on regular meetings (FirstStat, Finance and Performance 
Review), regular data collection (monthly or quarterly returns from service areas) and 
Member challenge (Overview and Scrutiny) as well as by the lead member for Policy and 
Performance. 
 
Replacement of Performance Management Plans (PMPs) with Key Priority Plans (KPPs) 
has ensured shared ownership across themed services for the delivery of key objectives. 
This has embedded a collaborative system based on robust data.  
 
Best Value Performance Indicators (BVPIs)  

 
The Corporate Performance Office will continue to assist services to review and improve the 
data gathering and reporting processes around BVPIs to ensure that the identified 
weaknesses are effectively addressed. This year's pre-audit review process has been 
streamlined and all data trail evidence is being gathered electronically. Current procedures 
ensure formal sign off actions at the appropriate level (Head of Service) for BVPI data. 
 
Section 4 – Review of Effectiveness 
 
The council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness 
of the system of internal control.  This review is informed by the work of Internal Audit, 
which reviews the development, maintenance and implementation of internal control across 
the council. 

 
Key improvements in 2005/6 
1. The Modernising Core Systems (MSC) project went live in August 2005. One of the key 

benefits of implementing MCS was the significant improvements that a SAP based 
solution will bring to the control environment. The following benefits are now being 
realised; 

• A single Core Accountancy system bringing together all financial transactions into one 
system including, but not limited to, payroll, procurement, asset values, benefit 
payments, virements, grants management, accounts payable, income processing, 
accounts receivable and cash management transactions. 

• “Real time” budget status reports to Budget Managers providing them the ability to drill 
down into the accounts therefore allowing them to analyse variances and take 
immediate action to mitigate or eliminate overspends. 
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• Clear authorisation structures and segregation of duties through strict user access built 
around role profiles which provides total transparency and traceability against any 
transaction recorded in MCS 

 

2. At the end of 2005/6 an Internal Control Checklist review was conducted across    the 
Council taking input from all Key Cost Centre Managers. The process    required Key 
Cost Centre Managers to assess the strengths and weaknesses of their own internal 
controls covering the following areas; 

General Risk Management   Performance Management 

Financial & Financial Management  Legislation 

Human Resources     Procurement & contracts 

Information Technology      Project Management 

Partnerships      Business Continuity Plans 

Audit Recommendations 

• From the data collected, evidence was gathered that supports the effectiveness of their 
control environment and work plans where implemented that focussed on the actions 
and responsibilities required to strengthen the control environment.  

• It is anticipated that the Internal Control Checklist process will become a key Risk 
Management tool which will be used bi-annually to review the strength of the Control 
Environment. 

• Our external auditors have provided assurance on the Internal Control Checklist process 
and have stated; 

“This assurance framework is the best that we have seen in Local Government in the 
past and should you be able to successfully implement it in our view it would represent 
Level 4 performance against the Audit Commission’s UoR framework in the relevant 
area” 

 
Internal Audit 
The external auditors rely on the work of Internal Audit on key financial systems and 
undertake selective reviews of internal control not included within the scope of internal 
audit.  Other inspectorates also examine internal control as part of their work. 

The process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control is set out below. 

Council 
The constitution is reviewed annually by the Special Constitution Review Committee, 
informed by an Officer Constitution Group. 

Executive 
Cabinet periodically reviews progress on key corporate risks. 

The Cabinet Member for Performance, Partnerships and Value has risk management in his 
portfolio. 

All committee reports include a section on risk. 

The Audit Committee conducts an annual review of the budget process.  In addition it 
reviews the Internal Audit Annual and Interim Annual Reports and the Annual (External) 
Audit and Inspection Letter, in addition to other key reports from Internal and External Audit 
during the year. 
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The Cabinet Overview and Scrutiny Committee is able to review all items on the Cabinet 
agenda and can call-in any decision taken by the Cabinet Committee or a Cabinet Member, 
this exceeds the statutory requirement to have arrangements for calling-in Key Decisions. 
 
Audit Committee 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were as follows:- 

• Ensuring that the council’s financial reports, annual financial statements, Statement of 
Internal Control and the action taken by the council to implement fully a risk 
management system are balanced, fair, conform to accountancy standards and meet 
prevailing best practice. 

 

• Reassuring the Council that the scope and depth of external audit work and the annual 
External Audit Plan are sufficient and conducted competently, including communication 
with the external auditor on audit findings and material weaknesses in accounting and 
internal control systems, including endorsing the annual External Auditor’s Letter. 
Meeting independently with the external auditor periodically, ensuring the independence 
and objectivity of the external auditor and in matters relating to the provision of non-audit 
services. 

 
• Satisfying the Council that the internal auditor carries out sufficient systematic reviews of 

the internal control arrangements, both operational (relating to effectiveness, efficiency 
and economy) and financial. 

 

• Reviewing the major findings of any relevant internal council investigations by the 
Corporate Anti Fraud Team into control weaknesses, fraud, whistle blowing or 
misconduct and the management’s response. 

 

• Reporting as appropriate to the Council and Cabinet. 
 
These were the terms of reference for this committee in 2005-6, however a revised terms of 
reference were adopted by the Audit Committee on 15 February 2006. 

Internal Audit 
 
The council’s Internal Audit Service is provided predominantly by an in-house team 
supplemented by two external partners as follows:- 

• ENPEYZ, who undertake all school audits; 

• Deloitte and Touche, who provide between 150 and 250 days risk based systems and 
follow-up audits a year. 

All audit work is undertaken to the standards of the Institute of Internal Auditors and the 
CIPFA Code of Practice. 

An annual audit plan is produced by the Chief Internal Auditor, in consultation with key 
stakeholders, based on a risk analysis of all of the council’s auditable systems.  In addition, 
the risks in each system are reviewed by the relevant Head of Service prior to the 
commencement of every audit review.  The audit plan is agreed with our external auditors 
prior to finalisation to ensure that that plans are co-ordinated to add maximum value and 
avoid any duplication.    

At the conclusion of each audit the audit findings and risks are discussed with the 
appropriate head of service and an action plan is agreed.  There is a follow-up review of 
every internal audit to ascertain progress being made by the head of service in addressing 
the agreed action plan.  The Chief Internal Auditor publishes an annual report to the 
Management Board and Audit and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee.   
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The Chief Internal Auditor is a Chief Officer of the council, reporting to the Chief Executive.  
The Chief Internal Auditor also reports to the Audit Committee on the following matters:- 

• annual audit plan; 

• regular progress reports on key findings and progress against the annual audit plan; 

• annual report providing a final position on progress against the annual audit plan, a 
summary of all internal audit reviews completed, and an independent opinion of the 
Chief Internal Auditor on the adequacy and effectiveness of the overall control 
environment. 

Corporate Anti Fraud Team 

The Corporate Anti Fraud Team (CAFT) has now been operational since May 2004, during 
which time we have provided a specialist investigation service to the Authority whilst 
delivering a fully inclusive training programme of Fraud Awareness & Education to staff. A 
key part of our work is to provide advice and assistance on Fraud matters to assist 
managers in policy writing and procedure changes. Since May 2004 our remit has 
expanded to include a greater level of intelligence gathering & more corporate pro-active 
work (including joint working with other Service areas). This has extended to Government 
Agencies and CAFT is now seen as a key player in the prevention and detection of crime.   

CAFT are the only team in London who operate completely independently of internal audit, 
maintaining a clear balance between process and investigation.   

Mission 

The Council is committed to demonstrating that services represent value for money and that 
there is a continuous drive to improve quality, efficiency and effectiveness of services 
(Corporate Plan).  The work of the CAFT supports this whilst delivering a ZERO tolerance 
agenda on Fraud and Corruption within Barnet.  

The CAFT operates within a Counter Fraud Framework which was approved by members in 
2004. The framework consists of a set of comprehensive documents which detail the 
authority’s Fraud Response Plan, Fraud reporting tool-kit, Prosecution Policy, and 
Whistleblowing policy.  

The CAFT always seeks to maximise confiscation, compensation and costs or, in money 
laundering cases, provide evidence to help convict those involved in this crime. These aims 
are supported by the provisions contained within the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002, the 
Criminal Justice Act 1988, the Social Security & Administration Act 1992, the Fraud Act 
(2001) and the Theft Act 1968.    

The CAFT continues to have key partner protocols in place with core business areas of the 
authority, as well as a number with external partners such as: 

• The Internal Audit Service 
• The Resources Directorate 
• The Housing & Council Tax Benefits Service 
• Unison & the GMB 
• The Department of Work & Pensions 
• The Metropolitan Police 
• Stadium Housing 
• BHAC 
 
Reporting 
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CAFT is divided into five separate areas: Investigations, Verification, Intelligence, 
Compliance and Support functions: 

 
Verification Team 

The Verification Team is responsible for verifying Housing and Council Tax Benefit claims. 
This task is accomplished through visits to claimants in their homes to confirm residency, 
identity, national insurance numbers and continual entitlement to benefit.   

The team is funded on a yearly basis by the Department of Work & Pensions (DWP) which 
sets performance standards and targets. The success of the team is seen as an essential 
tool in safeguarding the public purse and ensuring security against fraud and error. 

Key progress in this area: 

• Department of Work & Pensions visit target of 4,410 met and exceeded with 4,457 
successful  visits resulting in: 

• 1,473 previously undeclared changes of circumstances being identified and resolved.  
 

Intelligence Team 

The Intelligence Team is now in the second phase of implementation. The team is the 
single point of contact (SPOC) for the London Borough of Barnet and co-ordinates all 
information and intelligence flow to and from CAFT. The Intel team continues to work in 
accordance with the guidelines set out in the National Intelligence Model, which is a 
recognised system used by law enforcement agencies throughout the UK. This has ensured 
that the CAFT is able to communicate effectively with agencies such as the Department of 
Work and Pensions, Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs, the Immigration Service, other 
Local Authorities and the Police.  

This year has seen the Intelligence Team play an important role in working with the Anti-
Terrorist Branch of the Met Police and other major criminal investigations. In addition the 
team acts as a point of contact for advice, guidance and assistance to all Barnet staff 
making referrals to the CAFT. 

The Intelligence (Intel) Team is responsible for the risk assessment of all referrals made to 
CAFT as well as being the single point of contact for all fraud enquiries and requests for 
information from other agencies. Intel co-ordinates the flow of information and intelligence to 
and from the CAFT 

This includes the issuing of Intelligence notings to agencies such as the Police and Her 
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs using the 5x5x5 grading system. This allows us to grade 
the actual intelligence we are passing on, using a scoring system on the source, the 
reliability of the information and who the information can be disseminated to; it also means 
that the information can be placed on other agencies’ computer systems promptly.  

The manager of the Intel team is accredited by the Home Office, as the Council’s nominated 
officer for accessing of Communications Data in accordance with Part 2 of the Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA). Acting as the single point of contact between the 
Council and Communication Data providers. This ensures that requests for information 
made under this act are made from a central point within the Council and that requests are 
made in accordance with the legislation and approved by the Council’s designated RIPA 
officers.  

Investigation Team 

Investigators deal with both benefit and corporate fraud.  All are fully trained to prosecution 
standards and have attained the Government recognised qualification PINS 
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(Professionalism in Security) along with accreditation as Financial Investigators.  

Key progress in this area includes:  

• Work with Internal Audit on risk based investigation work. 

• The CAFT target for 2005/6 was £160k; we achieved £249,287 for which we received a 
subsidy payment from the DWP.  

• Prosecution of 132 Benefit Fraud Cases.  

• Investigators identified £524,963 in benefit fraud overpayments, with recovery being 
pursued through the benefits team and via the courts.    

• 69 Corporate Fraud Cases referred plus 65 requests for Advice & Assistance.   
 

• 57 Cases of Blue Badge Fraud (Barnet are one of only 6 Authorities taking action) 

• 12 Arrests, 3 Guilty Verdicts, 17 Disciplinary Cases.  

• £153,248 identified in losses.  

  Compliance and Standards 

Key progress in this area includes: 

• The continual facilitation of a rolling programme on document verification to all council 
staff verifying identity documents.  This was rolled out to schools in a pilot on safer 
recruitment and was very successful, receiving coverage in the Barnet Press. 

• Continual sample testing of assessed benefit claims to ensure accuracy and 
compliance. 

• The continual promotion of best practice amongst Benefit staff and external resident 
Social Landlord partners.  

Considering best practice/performance in Barnet against other authorities, implementing 
change where necessary. 
 
Support Team 

The team provides full administrative support to the CAFT. Each support officer has a 
distinct role i.e. Customer Liaison, Evidence & Disclosure Officer, Intelligence Officer, 
Department of Work & Pensions, Benefits Liaison.   

Key areas of achievement: 

• The team has received and dealt with 71,437 telephone calls relating to Benefit 
information, Investigations and Verification visit enquiries. 

• All support staff gained a BTEC in Housing and Council Tax Benefit Administration in 
2005/6 and can now assess benefit claims. 

• All support staff received full training on Customer Care. 
 
Section 5 – Significant Internal Control Issues 
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When preparing the 2005-6 SIC, all significant risks that may impact on the Council’s 
Corporate Objectives have been identified and actions required to mitigate these risks 
have been addressed. 
The Corporate Plan 2005/6 - 2008/9 identified the following areas where key risks to 
achieving the objectives are contained within them.  A full report on each area can 
be found in the appendices. 
 
• Modernising Core Systems   
• Human Resources    
• Information Systems    
• Regeneration     
• Parking Control     
• Primary School Capital Strategy  
 
Modernising Core Systems 

  
At the start of the project it was anticipated that there would be multiple risks and  
issues that could affect the successful implementation of the MCS solution in terms  
of both its functionality and impact on the Business. 
 
The major risks identified were 
 
Key Risk 1 - Business Engagement with the implementation of MCS.  

 
Action taken -  
Funding was made available in the project costs to provide back fill funding allowing 
Services to release key people to the project and backfill with temporary arrangements. 
 
Key Risk 2 - Preparing the Authority for working with MCS 

 
Action taken - 
To help them make the change from old ways of working to the new MCS processes a 
Change Management Team was included in the project team structure who’s responsibility 
was to prepare the Authority for the migration to new business processes and procedures. 

 
A Change Manager and Change Management Team was appointed to the project from 
within the Authority to lead on and own engagement issues and who were responsible for 
preparing the Authority for the migration to new business processes and procedures. 

  
A Change Management network and structure was established which incorporated 
Senior Managers (as Service Champions) and other LBB staff as Change Agents  
from all of the Service Areas who where responsible for communicating within their 
own Service Areas and feeding information back into the Project Management Team  
via the Change Manager 
 
Key Risk 3 - Supporting the Authority post go live  

 
Action taken - 
To ensure employees of the Authority had a period of time to come to terms with the  
revised processes and to move towards a continuous improvement program based on best 
practice using SAP, the Competency Centre was established to provide support to the user 
community on the technical process of a SAP solution, to develop strong effective and 
efficient business processes and to lead on process improvements. 

 
The Competency Centre (now known as the Resources - Shared Service Centre) is 
now embarking on a further engagement program across the Authority looking to 
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embed SAP based processes where they are deemed necessary. 
 
Human Resources 

 
The Strengthening HR Project identified three key areas of risk. The major risks identified 
were: 

   
Key Risk 1 - Resolve HR and Payroll data integrity issues 

 
Action taken - 
Operation Windmill was established as a joint project with HR and the Corporate Anti-Fraud 
Team (CAFT), with CAFT taking the project lead.  

 
The project focused on tackling systemic weaknesses relating to recruitment and potential 
fraudulent employee activity.  

 
This has involved ‘locking the door’ in terms of recruitment processes, introducing an interim 
corporate checklist to ensure consistency of documentation required of new employees, 
chasing personal information data cleanse forms from all employees and following up on 
suspect National Fraud Initiative cases.  
  
Actions from Operation Windmill include: 
o The introduction of the corporate checklist 
o Personal data cleanse activity 
o Investigations into employees with temporary national insurance numbers 
o Investigations into employees identified as suspect by the National Fraud Initiative 

report 
o Initiation of safer recruitment pilots in 3 schools in the borough 

 
Key Risk 2 - Resolution of systemic issues within Human Resources 

 
Action taken - 
Action plan developed to address the priority service performance and policy issues 
covering the following key objectives; 
 
• Continuation HR data integrity, building on the work of Operation Windmill. 
• Tackling the skills issues across HR 
• Development of a corporate HR strategy 
• Creation of HR policies and procedures to be applied consistently across the authority 
 

Progress to date against the action plan include:- 
• Completion of two phases of Operation Windmill (see above) 
• Establishment of project team tasked with delivering cleansed hard HR files across the 

board by early 2006 
• Plans in place to tackle weaknesses in HR data in time for 2006/7 
• Review of HR model of devolution 
• MCS training delivered 
• HR strategy development underway in conjunction with Resources Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 
 
ITP (now called Modernising Our Infrastructure)      
Infrastructure Programme  is managed under a structured Prince 2 protocol. A full risk 
management process is in place in managed by the Programme Manager. 

 
Key Risk 1 - IT infrastructure is not aligned with business, with the resultant 
risk of failure to meet corporate IS objectives, failure to satisfy business needs, 
misplacement of resources, poor integration with other initiatives and duplication or 
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misapplication of resources 
 

Action taken - 
A comprehensive evaluation has been undertaken of all current IS systems and an interface 
approach between all interrelated systems is under development.  This recovery project sits 
under governance of IS programme board who are overseeing numerous IS developments 
to ensure they are aligned with the strategy 

 
Key Risk 2 - Conflict with the organisation’s financial strategy; leading to 
• inability to afford the acquisition,  
• inability to cope with possible unforeseen additional costs 
• inability to afford additional business requirements identified in business case adding to 

overall project costs and the need for additional funding.    
 

Action taken - 
The budget for ITP was approved in Capital Programme 2005/2006.  Professional Services 
costs will be fixed after design phase, but capped at 10% above submission at BAFO.  
Hardware costs will be procured under an open book pricing framework. 

 
The Programme Manager meets with the Project Sponsor weekly to review the budgets and 
a report passed to the Project Board.  

 
Any projected overspends are discussed with the Project Sponsor and action taken to 
reduce or seek authorise the forecast overspend. 

 
This project is managed using VFM principles therefore some areas of budgeted spend may 
need to be addressed to accept greater cost which will deliver enhanced value. 

 
Key Risk 3 - The Authority don't know what is going on therefore doesn't engage 
in relevant discussions at relevant forums.   This could have an impact on the solution 
chosen 

 
Action taken - 
The project plan has clear milestones which are updated regularly and presented to the 
Programme Board / Project Board as necessary.  A highlight report is issued via IS 
programme office. 

 
Key Risk 4 - Incumbent supplier's performance falls to unacceptable levels 
towards expiry date 

 
Action taken – 
Relevant notice has been given to Xpert Systems for the termination of the support contract. 
Service Delivery Manager from Prime have been appointed and are now based on-site full 
time to manage transition. 

 
Regeneration 

 
An independent review of one of the largest schemes within the Regeneration programme 
was undertaken in June 2005 by 4P’s and followed the Gateway review methodology.  The 
results of this review were translated into risks and incorporated within the Council’s risk 
register 

 
Key Risk 1 - Failure to have in place a robust strategy plan to reflect clear   
deliverables and objectives for the Brent Cross Cricklewood Regeneration 
Programme.  
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Action taken - 
Strategy plan and associated project management techniques now in place al. 
 
Key Risk 2 - Failure to ensure that a business case has been established and 
approved which contains key aspects such as Business Objectives, Costs and Benefits and 
Performance Measures. This not a risk 

 
Action taken - 
Development of the business case is in progress. Developers business plans still to be 
tested. Delayed as a result of finalising the business plans by the developers. Key priority 
for Strategic Development Unit in 2006/07 

 
Key Risk 3 - Failure to establish an organisational structure with appropriately 
trained and experienced staff to manage and oversee the overall success of the project. 
This not a risk 

 
Action taken - 
Organisational structure established with the Head of Strategic Development in post. 
Full Strategic Development Unit structure agreed by General Functions Committee 
on January 19th 2006 

 
Key Risk 4 - Failure to establish a Management Board Structure which has clear 
lines of responsibility and terms of reference. 

 
Action taken - 
The Project Steering Group will be reconstituted at an appropriate time into the Project 
Management Board. The composition of the Project Management Board has been agreed 
and the terms of reference will be adopted at its meeting in June 2006. 
 
Parking Control    

 
The significant corporate risk for the parking service is a financial one.  The generation of an 
annual surplus which must be budgeted for, and the Section must ensure that it manages 
this surplus in the best interests of the Council and should take steps to maximise the 
recovery of the revenue due. 

 
Key Risk 1 - Failure to ensure Parking Control manages the annual parking 
surplus in the best interests of the Council and take steps to maximise the recovery of the 
revenue due.  
 
Action taken - 
Review each parking service element to identify opportunities for service 
improvement covering;  
• Parking enforcement deployment has been reviewed, benchmarks have been 

established, and performance of individuals is measured against the benchmarks.  
• Performance reports and monitoring of individual Parking Officers have been 

constructed 
• Parking Penalties Processing team procedures are being rolled out to enable adequate 

scrutiny to take place at an early stage of the representation process. 
 

Adjustments to the 2006/07 base budget have been made to reflect a more realistic level of 
surplus in line with 2005/06 outturn projections  
 
Key Risk 2 - Failure to maximise the ability of parking attendants to identify and 
penalise vehicles contravening restrictions in order to achieve effective management of 
traffic and parking. 
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Action taken - 
Quality loops have been set up to improve the “enforceability” of the streetscape by 
implementation of good quality signage and markings, and maintaining it to current  
legal standards. 
 
Primary School Capital Strategy 

 
Key Risk 1  - Failure to address investment need 

 
Action taken - 
The financial model including sensitivity analyses are being run, taking account of the latest 
estimates on land valuations and construction prices. 

 
Key Risk 2 - Achievability of land valuations and receiving these amounts in line 
with the projected programme spend profile. 

 
Action taken - 
Land valuations have been reviewed. An independent assessment of land values was 
conducted and a significant gap between LBB Property Service figures and the independent 
assessor was identified. 

 
A procurement model has been explored with external legal advisors which would test how 
land is handled in the programme and how the council can be more confident that it is 
getting value for money. This proposed model will form part of the report going to Cabinet 
Resources Committee on 28 June. 

 
The proposed tendering process will require all bidder to submit two tender returns, one 
including land and the other excluding land. Thus allowing LBB to make an accurate 
assessment using value for money principles. 

 
Under this model the final contract let would include an overidge clause which will allow 
LBB to receive a share of any realised values which are above the forecast levels. 

 
Key Risk 3 - Failure to address construction capacity and pricing issues. 
 
Action taken - 
There are several medium sized construction companies which continue to express interest 
and capacity to undertake the programme. These contractors  would not normally be 
engaged on major schemes such as the Olympics or the large secondary school projects 
under the Building Schools for the Future programme. 
A review of construction costs has been undertaken and fed into the financial model. 

 
Key risk 4 - Failure to achieve the roll projections 

 
Action taken - 
Roll projections have been reviewed by an external advisor using GLA information. 

 
Key risk 5 - Failure to engage actively with stakeholder and manager their 
expectations and perception of the project. 

 
Action taken 
The Chief Education Officer held separate meetings at each Wave 1 school with parents, 
governors and staff. There was also an open meeting in NLBP. A consultative group of 
head teachers is being set up to consider aspects of the programme in more detail. 
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Key risk 6 - Failure to appreciate the market appetite for this project. 
 

Action taken 
Soft market testing has been undertaken to assess the appetite for the programme. This 
has indicated strong on-going interest. 
 
Key risk 7  -  Failure to gain the appropriate approvals from the various governing 
bodies. (planning, school organisation, DfES) 

 
Action taken: Planning advisors have been engaged to produce an over-arching planning 
strategy for the programme and to examine issues at each site.  This work is designed to 
build information for S77 DfES and Sport England approval processes.  An analysis of the 
School Organisation process for amalgamations is being undertaken. 

 
Key Risk 8 - Failure to provide proactive support to stakeholder throughout the 
project life cycle 

 
Action taken 
The consultation exercise (Key risk 5) demonstrated a high level of support for the 
programme in most schools. There was concern where amalgamations were proposed.  
  
It should be stressed that these are just risks at this point; i.e. they have been properly 
identified as part of management’s risk management arrangements.  The appropriate 
officers seek to ensure that the mitigating controls, described in the appendices to this 
report, operate effectively to ensure the risks do not materialise. 

 
Qualification of BVPIs in Adult Social Services  
 
Adult Social Services currently has six best value performance indicators (BVPIs) as part of 
it’s set of 31 PAF indicators set by the Department of Health. The Council’s External 
Auditors (Robson Rhodes) raised concerns with regards to the accuracy and quality of BVPI 
data and reserved all seven BVPIs in 2003-04 and all eight for 2004-05.  They further 
commented that reservations were due to a combination of historical weaknesses dating 
back to the operations of CRISSP and more recently due to implementation issues with 
regards to the SWIFT system. 
 
A BVPI audit action plan was created in July 2005 to act on the recommendations of the 
external audit and ensure un-reservation of all BVPIs in 2005/06. A subsequent audit was 
carried out by LBB internal audit in December 2005 and the plan was revised in the light of 
those findings.  
 
As part of Adult Social Services’ e-enablement strategy, the implementation of the 
Electronic Social Care Record in Barnet in 06/07 has meant that the method of matching 
paper files to relevant databases (as per the audit tests) to validate information on Swift can 
no longer be considered satisfactory. The dynamic nature of a client’s care package, and 
the increased autonomy available to the client, means that paper records are no longer 
effective mechanisms for holding definitive client data.  
 
With this in mind, Adult Social Services started the implementation of new data validation 
processes in early 2005, which have since led to substantial improvements in data quality. 
At the time of the audit, these systems had completed their first phase of cross-validation in 
the purchasing teams, but were not yet being routinely cross-checked against care 
management information.  
 
The new systems of cross-validation highlights our approach to managing the 
completeness, accuracy, reliability and timeliness of data on Swift in comparison with 
legacy approaches which look to paper files.  
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It is recognised that the work already undertaken, including all-team training, process 
documentation and substantial cross-system validation has resulted in us fulfilling the audit 
recommendations.  
Further consolidation of the last year’s activity, and the introduction of sustainable processes will 
help to engage staff at all levels in the pursuit of data quality and lead to the department having all 
reservations removed from its BVPIs in the external audit scheduled for summer 2006. 
 
Internal Audit annual report 2005-6  

The most recurring areas of control weakness across the council identified in the 2005/6 
Internal Audit annual report are: 

• Either no or inadequate policies and procedures (28 instances out of a total 182 
reported risks made).  

 Findings in this area do not necessarily mean that policies and/or procedures do not 
exist but that improvements or additions to existing policies and/or procedures may 
be required.  

 The generic risks that result from these omissions include potentially: lack of 
consistency; standards not being set, understood or complied with; loss of 
knowledge due to staff changes; increased training time for new staff. 

• Inadequate monitoring controls over resources (23/182) 

 The generic risks that result from these omissions include potentially: failure to 
achieve optimum benefit from resources; management unaware of misuse of 
resources or potential adverse budget circumstances;  

• Inadequate data entry arrangements (22/182) 

 The generic risks that result from these omissions include potentially: ineffective 
decision making based on inadequate information; adverse external inspection 
finding on data integrity. 

• Lack of monitoring, budgeting and administrative controls (20/182) The generic risks 
that result from these omissions include potentially: service objectives not being met 
efficiently and effectively due to an inadequate control environment. 

Management action has been agreed to address weaknesses recorded in the respective 
reports, which, if implemented, will improve the overall control environment.  

31% of risks were assessed by internal audit as ‘Priority 1’, signifying that there was a 
‘significant risk that either objectives will not be met efficiently and effectively or that fraud or 
irregularity is unlikely to be  prevented or detected’.    

68% of risks were ‘Priority 2’, signifying ‘only limited assurance that objectives will be met 
efficiently and effectively and that fraud or irregularity will be prevented or detected’. 

All Internal Audit work is followed up as a matter of course. Follow-ups indicate how the 
level of audit assurance has changed as a result of management implementation of agreed 
actions. Details of the assurance revisions on the 28 follow-ups conducted in the report 
period are detailed below.  Whilst it is encouraging that 19 of the areas are now at a 
‘satisfactory’ level of assurance, it needs to be noted that 10 remain at ‘limited’ indicating 
that further management action is required to fully implement agreed actions or mitigate 
identified risks. 
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Analysis of Assurance Levels on Follow-up No. 
  
No assurance still no assurance 0 
Limited assurance still limited assurance 8 
Satisfactory assurance to limited assurance 1 
No assurance to limited assurance 0 
No or limited assurance to satisfactory 11 
Satisfactory assurance still satisfactory assurance 8 
  
Total 28 

 
External Audit Reports 2005-6 
 

In 2005-6, external audit issued reports on the following: 

 Valuation Processes for Other Land & Building and Non-Operational Assets 

 MCS Pre-Implementation 

 Best Value Performance Indicators Audit 2005/6 

 Use of Resources 

 Grants certification 

 Follow-up of HR and Payroll 
 
Key elements of Robson Rhodes reports to be inserted by Robson Rhodes   
 
SIC 2005-6 
The process for production of the annual SIC has been improved with the development of 
the mini-SIC process that all Heads of Service have adhered too. 
 
Input from External Audit, presented to a special Management Board meeting on 16th 
August 2005, has been acted upon and significance improvements in the SIC have been 
forthcoming. 
 
The Internal Control Checklist process ensures that all services effectively contribute to 
continuous improvements to the control environment in which will provide further assurance 
on the effectiveness of the Councils ability to achieve it’s commitment to ensure; 
 
• laws and regulations are complied with; 
• required processes are adhered to; 
• financial statements and other published information are accurate and reliable; 
• human, financial and other resources are managed efficiently and effectively; 
• services are delivered efficiently and effectively. 
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We are confident that the revised process, implemented during 2005/6, link together work 
on risk management and assurances obtained from all other sources. 
These processes have provided input into the annual statement prepared on behalf of the 
Chief Executive and Leader for the Annual Accounts, and will provide supporting 
documentation for internal and external scrutiny.  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
…………………………………………             ………………………………………                                             
Leo Boland     Michael Freer 
Chief Executive    Leader of the Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



London Borough of Barnet Statement of Accounts 2005/06 
  

38

Statement of Accounting Policies 
 

The accounting policies set out below apply to the Financial Statements of the Council and The 
Pension Fund. 
 
General 
 
This Statement of Accounts has been prepared according to the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2003 under section 27 of the Audit Commission Act 1998. The general principles adopted in 
compiling the accounts are those recommended by the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in Great Britain and the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) that are issued 
jointly by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Local Authority 
(Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee (LASAAC). These meet all requirements of proper 
accounting practice for local authorities. 
 
Best Value Accounting Code of Practice (BVACOP) 
 
The service expenditure analysis within the Consolidated Revenue Account follows the CIPFA Best 
Value Accounting Code of Practice. 
 
Associated and Subsidiary Companies (FRS2) 
 
The 2005 SORP requires Authorities to produce group accounts  where group relationships occur 
with associated and subsidiary companies. Last year the SORP allowed these statements to be 
prepared using interim arrangements. In 2005/06 Barnet Council will be preparing fully consolidated 
accounts with like comparators from 2004/05. 
 
Accounting for Retiring Benefits (FRS17) within Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 
Following the creation of Barnet Homes, there is no FRS17 charge to the HRA as there are no 
substantive staff. 
 
Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
The accounts of the council are prepared on an accruals basis in accordance with the Code of 
Accounting Practice.  This means that sums due to and from the council during the year are included 
in the accounts whether or not the cash has actually been paid or received in the year.  This 
approach includes customer and client receipts, employee costs, interest and supplies and services. 
 
Bad Debt 
 
The carrying amount of debtors that is adjusted for doubtful debts , which are provided for and known 
uncollectable debts should be written off. 
 
Contingent Asset 
 
A contingent asset is a possible asset arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the local authority’s 
control. 
 
Contingent Liability 
 
A contingent liability is either: 
 

i. a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the authority’s control, or 

 
ii. a present obligation arising from past events where it is not probable that a transfer of 

economic benefits will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with 
sufficient reliability. 
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Fixed Assets 
 

• Recognition 
 
All expenditure where the authority will benefit for more than one year, buying or improving fixed 
assets is capitalised in the accounts and accrued. By definition this excludes routine repairs and 
maintenance which are charged directly to service revenue accounts. 
 
• Measurement 
 
Valuation of land and buildings accords with the statements of asset valuation principles and 
guidance notes issued by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), as recommended by 
CIPFA.   
 
The current asset values are based on certificates issued by the Council’s Valuation Officer. All 
assets are valued on a rolling programme over five years, with the exception of housing stock which 
is re-valued annually. 
 
• Depreciation 
 
All fixed assets, including infrastructure, are depreciated using the straight-line method with no 
residual value, over their useful life. The useful life of each of the authority’s buildings is determined 
by the Valuation Officer while vehicles, plant and equipment can vary. Exceptions to these are land 
and investment properties, in accordance with current regulations these are not depreciated.  
 
• Impairment 
 
Our Valuation Officer reviews our assets annually for impairment.  Impairment is provided for assets 
where there is a material reduction in value at the year end.  It is accounted for in the year in which it 
arises.  
 
Charges to revenue in respect of capital 
 
Service revenue accounts, including the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) are charged with a capital 
charge for all capital assets used in the provision of services  These comprise an annual  
depreciation amount and capital financing charge determined by applying a notional interest rate 
specified by the CIPFA/LASAAC Joint Committee each year for all local authorities. For 2005/06 
these rates were 3.5% for assets carried at current value and 4.95% for assets carried at historic 
cost.  Services are also charged with impairment loss in respect of economic consumption should 
this arise. 
 
Capital charges to the HRA are calculated in a manner determined by the Secretary of State. 
 
Capital charges have a neutral impact on the amounts to be raised from local taxation (Council Tax), 
as they are reversed in the Asset Management Revenue Account (AMRA) and replaced by external 
interest payable  and the statutory minimum revenue provision for debt repayment.  
 
Intangible Assets 
 
Intangible assets are created when the council incurs capital expenditure without a tangible fixed 
asset being created, such as the payment of capital grants and spending on computer software.  
Intangible assets are written off to revenue either in the year they arise, where there is no long term 
benefit or over a specified period as in the case of the capitalised lease for accommodation at North 
London Business Park which will be written off to revenue over the life of the lease.   
 
Intra Group Transactions  
 
FRS2 requires intra group transactions to be eliminated in full. 
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Impairment 
 
A reduction in the value of a fixed asset below its carrying value. 

 
Capital Receipts 
 
A capital receipt is income received on the disposal of a fixed asset. It is held in the capital receipts 
unapplied account until either used to fund capital spend or repay debt. Legislation requires a 
percentage of HRA capital receipts to be transferred to a central pool for redistribution by the 
government.  
 
Government Grants and Contributions 
 
Government grants and other contributions are accounted for on an accruals basis. They are shown 
in the accounting statements when the conditions for their receipts have been complied with and 
there is reasonable assurance that the grant or contribution is to be received. 
 
Grants and contributions relating to fixed assets are credited to the Government Grants Deferred 
Account and released (amortised) to the Asset Management Revenue Account in line with 
depreciation. 
 
Leasing 
 
The Council has no finance leases. Operating lease rentals are charged to revenue over the life of 
the agreement. 
 
Redemption of debt 
 
In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, the Council 
has set aside a minimum revenue provision of 4% for the General Fund.  There is no longer a 
statutory requirement for a minimum revenue provision for the Housing Revenue Account and the 
Council has not set aside a voluntary amount. 
 
Reserves 
 
Expenditure is charged to revenue and not directly to any reserve. For each reserve established, the 
purpose, usage and basis of transactions are identified in the notes to the Council’s Financial 
Statements. The net effect of revenue sums set aside appears as an adjustment in the Consolidated 
Revenue Account. The movements are reflected in the Statement of Total Movement in Reserves. 
 
Provisions 
 
The Council has made a number of provisions for liabilities that are certain to occur, but the timing 
and amounts are uncertain.  
 
• Insurance Provision 
 
Apart from bad debts, the most significant provision is for insurance. The level of the provision should 
reflect the value of outstanding liabilities.  Internal insurance premiums charged to services are 
credited to insurance and in most years this sum, together with commission earned, more than 
covers the claims paid out. The accumulated funds therefore would meet any individual year’s 
shortfall.  
 
The Council has recently completed a comprehensive review of the Insurance Service and the 
provisions required reflected in an actuarial valuation of the outstanding liability being £6.8m. 
 
The forward plan (long-term budget) included a commitment to contribute additional sums to the 
Insurance provision to reach the required level by 2006/07 which has now been achieved.  
 
The adequacy of the level of insurance provision will be subject to a further Actuarial evaluation as at 
31 March 2007. 
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Estimations 
 
The only significant estimations in the accounts is in respect of certain community care services 
where revenue accruals have been made based on invoices assumed to relate to the year of account 
but not received until after the end of the financial year and Special Parking Account predicted 
income recovery from unpaid penalty charge notices issued in 2005-06. 
 
Investments 
 
Investments are shown on the balance sheet at cost. 
 
Pension Costs 
 
Under Financial Reporting Standard 17 (FRS 17) the Council is required to account for retirement 
benefits when it is committed to give them, even if the actual giving will be many years into the future. 
In line with the requirements of the SORP the Council is now using the AA Corporate Bond rate to 
calculate its future liabilities. 
 
• Pension Reserve 
 
The Pension Reserve is the financial accounting mechanism to ensure that FRS17 has no impact on 
council tax.   
 
The cost of providing pensions for employees is funded in accordance with the statutory 
requirements governing each scheme. 
 
Where the payments made for the year do not match the change in the authority’s recognised asset 
or liability for the same period, the recognised cost of pensions will not match the amount required to 
be raised in taxation.  This  difference is removed by an appropriation to or from the pension’s 
reserve, which equals the net change in the pension’s liability recognised in the Consolidated 
Revenue Account.   
 
• Classification of Schemes 
 
The council participates in two different pension schemes, one for teachers, an unfunded scheme 
administered by the Department for Education and Skills (DfES) and the Local Government Pension 
Scheme for our other staff.  The schemes provide members with a defined benefit pension related to 
pay and service.  The teachers’ scheme is, as said, unfunded, but the other is a funded scheme.  
 
For the purposes of FRS17 pension schemes are classified into two categories, Defined Benefit or 
Defined Contribution.  The Barnet scheme is classified as Defined Benefit.  The teachers’ schemes 
of the DfES, although a Defined Benefit scheme, is treated as Defined Contribution scheme because 
it does not allow the allocation of its liabilities and assets consistently and reliably to participant 
authorities  
 
• Defined Benefit Schemes 
 
The attributable assets of the scheme is measured at fair value and include current assets and 
investments.  The attributable liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit 
method.  Scheme liabilities are discounted at the AA Corporate Bond Rate. The surplus or deficit in 
the scheme is the excess or shortfall of the value of the assets in the scheme over or below the 
present value of the scheme liabilities.  The change in the defined benefit asset or liability is shown in 
the Consolidated Revenue Account and analysed into the following components, current service 
costs, interest cost, expected return on assets and actuarial gains and losses, and past service costs 
and gains and losses on settlements and curtailments.  
 
• Defined Contribution Schemes 
 
The Teachers scheme, whilst being a defined benefit scheme is treated as a defined contribution 
scheme as explained above. This means that the pension costs reported for any year is equal to the 
contributions payable for the scheme for the same period.  The costs are recognised within Net Cost 
of Services. 
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• Cash 
 
As at 31st March 2006 the London Borough of Barnet pension fund had £113m cash in hand which 
was managed with the council’s cash as part of the council’s temporary investment strategy.  
 
• Pensions 
 
Further information on pension costs and the Pension Fund appear in the individual statements 
within the accounts. 
 
Stocks and work in progress 
 
Stocks and stores are in the accounts at the lower of latest price paid or net realisable value, 
according to a period stock list. Work in progress on uncompleted jobs is valued at cost, including 
overhead allocations. 
 
Support service allocations 
 
The cost of central departments has been allocated to direct services on a variety of bases, reflecting 
the work provided by these support services. 
 
Exceptional Items, Extraordinary Items and Prior Period Adjustments 
 
Where applicable and relevant exceptional items and extraordinary items are disclosed in the 
Consolidated Revenue Account with full supporting notes.    
 
The majority of prior period adjustments arise from corrections and adjustments and are accounted 
for in the year they are identified.  Material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from 
changes in accounting policy or correction of fundamental errors are accounted for by restating 
comparative figures for the preceding year in the statement of account and notes and adjusting the 
opening balance of reserves for the cumulative effect.  More details and fuller explanations are given 
in the individual relevant financial statements. 
 
Post Balance Sheet Events 
 
Events after the balance sheet date are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur 
between the balance sheet date and the date when the financial statements were authorised for 
issue. Two types of events can be identified: 

 
• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the balance sheet date (adjusting 

events after the balance sheet date); and 
 
• those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the balance sheet date (non-adjusting 

events after the balance sheet date) 
 
The Euro 
 
The position regarding the possible replacement of sterling by the euro continues to be monitored 
and the council is ready to take prompt action should the need arise. As yet, no assessment, and 
thus no provision, has been made in the accounts for any cost implications associated with the 
possible change. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Clive Medlam BSc., CPFA, 
Chief Finance Officer 
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SECTION 3 – Statements of Accounts 
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Consolidated Revenue Account 
 
This shows expenditure on and income from the council’s day-to-day activities.  
 

2005/06 2004/05

Note Expenditure Income
Net 

Expenditure
Net 

Expenditure
On its services the Council spent:- £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Central services to the public 6,359 (4,497) 1,862 2,327

Cultural, environmental & planning services 70,909 (19,034) 51,875 51,337

Education services 242,027 (44,095) 197,932 183,792

Highways, roads & transport services 31,472 (15,304) 16,168 18,658

Housing services 255,085 (199,227) 55,858 39,033

Social services 126,531 (23,030) 103,501 101,793

Corporate & democratic core 4,595 (104) 4,491 4,442

Non distributed costs 40,794 (27,569) 13,225 16,845

NET COST OF SERVICES 777,772 (332,860) 444,912 418,227

Levies 2 1,231 1,896
Trading undertakings 816 897
Asset management revenue account 3 (67,561) (49,948)
Contribution to Housing Pooled Capital Receipts 2,063 3,218
Interest receivable (2,709) (1,488)
Pension interest cost & expected return on 
Pension Assets 9 10,290 8,200
NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE 389,042 381,002

HRA contribution to/(from) balances (2,093) (1,222)
Contribution from earmarked reserves 4,528 (109)
Transfer from Capital Receipts for Housing Pool ** (2,063) (3,218)
Redistribution of LRB balances (36) (6)
Contribution (from) / to capital financing reserves for
       - Deferred Grant 7,279 1,820
       - adjustment for MRP 4 (12,557) (8,948)
       - Early retirements 0 (2,490)
HRA Major Repairs Reserve (7,523) (4,109)
Contribution from the pension reserve 9 (11,200) (9,110)
AMOUNT TO BE MET FROM GOVERNMENT 
GRANT AND LOCAL TAXES 365,377 353,610

Revenue support grant (130,374) (135,070)
Contribution from non-domestic rate pool (108,094) (89,499)
Demand on collection fund (134,172) (131,273)
Transfer of collection fund deficit 1,303 947
(SURPLUS)/DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR (5,960) (1,285)

** refer to Note 7 Housing Revenue Account
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GENERAL FUND BALANCES 2005/06 2004/05

£’000 £’000
Balance at beginning of year 16,035 11,750
Planned contribution to balances 0 3,000
Repayment of schools advances (983) 0
Surplus / (Deficit) for the year 5,960 1,285

21,012 16,035
of which:-
General Fund 10,487 5,005
School Balances 10,525 11,030

21,012 16,035
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Consolidated Revenue Account Notes 
 
1. Building Control 
 
Local authorities are required to prepare a Building Control Statement under the Building (Local 
Authority Charges) Regulations 1998. The results of trading were:- 
 

2005/06 2004/05
£’000 £’000

Employee Expenses 683 742
Transport 27 31
Supplies & Services 222 412
Central & Support Services 174 95
Capital Finance 10 0
Total Expenditure 1,116 1,280

Building Regulation Charges (1,217) (1,316)
Total Income (1,217) (1,316)
Deficit / (Surplus) on activities for year (101) (36)

 
These figures form part of the Consolidated Revenue Accounts. 
 
2. Analysis of Levies 
 
The authority helps defray the costs of other organisations. It does this either as a statutory duty 
or voluntarily, where it benefits the council. Some contributions are made to London wide 
organisations. 
 

2005/06 2004/05
£’000 £’000

Miscellaneous levies:-
Magistrates’ service 0 712
Coroners’ service 223 222
Environment Agency (land drainage) 250 232
Lee Valley Regional Park Authority 394 375
London Pensions Fund Authority 364 355

1,231 1,896

Levies and contributions included in service net expenditure:-
London boroughs’ grant scheme 1,163 1,151
Concessionary fares scheme 9,502 8,669
North London Waste Authority 9,802 8,984

20,467 18,804
21,698 20,700
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3. Asset Management Revenue Account 
 
This account brings together depreciation (see note 5) and interest charged to the authority with 
asset rentals/capital charges to service accounts. The account and its transactions are needed 
for services to show their true operating costs, including their use of assets. As the overall 
surplus is netted off to the general fund there is no effect upon council tax. 
 

2005/06 2004/05
£'000 £'000

Income
General Fund (14,687) (21,902)
Notional Interest (18,161) (32,848)
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets (4,286) (7,935)
Housing revenue account (incl. write down of premium) (39,872) (28,666)
Housing revenue account depreciation (15,636) (12,447)

(92,642) (70,950)

Deferred government grants (7,279) (1,820)
(99,921) (72,770)

Expenditure
External interest 2,037 448
Housing revenue account depreciation provision 12,447
Provision for depreciation - HRA 15,636 9,927
Non-HRA 14,687 30,323

Surplus transferred to the consolidated revenue account (67,561) (49,948)

 
There was no impairment identified by the Council’s Valuation Officer in 2005/06. 
 
4. Minimum revenue provision 
 
The Government requires the authority to set money aside each year for the repayment of loans 
originally taken out to finance capital expenditure. This is called the minimum revenue provision 
(MRP). Under capital accounting arrangements, the council’s services are charged depreciation 
to reflect the benefit received in the year from the use of capital assets. The depreciation charge 
is treated as the council’s revenue provision and any variation from the statutory minimum is 
transferred between the capital financing account and the consolidated revenue account. Barnet 
council’s practice is to not exceed the minimum required.  
 
The figures were:- 
 

2005/06 2004/05
£’000 £’000

General Fund Minimum revenue provision 2,130 1,448

Less – depreciation charges (14,687) (10,396)

Balance transferred from capital financing reserve (12,557) (8,948)
 

 
5. Asset Rentals 
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Service revenue accounts are charged asset rentals for fixed assets used in service delivery. 
Capital financing costs are shown separately and are not reflected in the cost of services. 
 
6. Local Government Act 1972 – Section 137 
 
Almost all the provisions of this section of the Local Government Act 1972 have been 
superseded through the granting of general enabling powers to local authorities in the Local 
Government Act 2000. (Chapter 22 part1). Barnet has reviewed its activities in the light of this 
and concluded that no expenditure was incurred under any residual Section 137 powers for the 
past year.  
 
7. Expenditure on publicity 
 
Section 5 of the Local Government Act 1986 requires a separate account of expenditure on 
publicity.  
 

2005/06 2004/05
£’000 £’000

Information service – staff 395 318
Information service – other costs 144 338
Staff recruitment and advertising 638 690

1,177 1,346
 

 
8. Local Government Goods and Services Act 1970 
 
This Act empowers the council to provide goods and services to others. Income from providing 
printing and training services to others in 2005/06 produced £148,000 (£214,000 in 2004/05). 
 
9. Pension costs 
 

The authority has its own local government pension scheme. The costs of contributing to 
pensions earned by employees in the year of account are included in the net cost of services. 
The net of pension interest cost less expected return on assets counts against net operating 
expenditure. Pension interest cost is the amount, under the projected unit method used by the 
council’s actuary, by which current service cost increases as the members of the scheme 
approach retirement. These are all notional costs calculated to show the authority’s true liability 
change for the year. They are produced by the council’s actuary in line with accounting 
regulations. To ensure the net figure left in the account is the amount actually paid to the 
pension fund, that is real rather than notional, an adjustment to the pension reserve is made to 
reverse out the difference: 
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£000 £000 £000 £000
Net Cost of Services
Current Service Cost 12,020 13,960
Curtailment & Settlements 2,760 3,480
Past Service cost 460 420

15,240 17,860
Net Operating Expenditue
Interest Cost 30,940 27,110
Expected Return on Assets in the Scheme (20,650) (18,910)

10,290 8,200
Amounts to be met from Government Grants 
and Local Taxation
Movement on Pensions Reserve (11,200) (9,110)

Amount charged for pensions in the year 14,330 16,950

2005/06 2004/05

 
Note 15 to the Consolidated Balance Sheet contains the assumptions made in estimating the 
figures included in this note. Note 5 to the Statement of Total Movements in Reserves details 
the costs that have arisen through the year. 
 
The authority also contributes to the Teacher’s Pension Fund administered by the Department 
for Education and Skills at a rate of 13.5% of pensionable pay. The  amount paid in the year, 
£16.4m is included in the education service costs. 
10. Senior staff remuneration 
 
The number of staff who received taxable remuneration in excess of £50,000 for the year was: 
 

2005/06 2004/05

£50,000 to £59,999 162 89
£60,000 to £69,999 53 23
£70,000 to £79,999 10 8
£80,000 to £89,999 8 10
£90,000 to £99,999 5 4
£100,000 to £109,999 5 1
£110,000 to £119,999 0 4
£120,000 to £129,999 2 1
£130,000 to £139,999 3 0
£140,000 to £149,999 0 0
£150,000 to £159,999 0 1
£160,000 to £169,999 0 0
£170,000 to £179,999 1 0
Total 249 141

 
11. Leasing 
 
The Council does not own all of the property, vehicles, computers and other equipment it uses and 
the authority acquires these items using operating leases.  
 
The authority is committed to making payments of £7.85m in 2006/7 in respect of operating leases 
and has agreements promising income of £1.84m.The future outstanding lease commitments are:- 
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Years 

Vehicles, 
Plant & 
Equipment 

Property 
Leased In 

Property 
Leased Out 

  £'000 £'000 £'000
2005/06   8,623 2,072  (1,788)
2006/07 5,929 2,020 (1,839)
2007 to 11 3,745 3,159 (4,585)
Beyond 2011 0 12,435 (70,786)

 
12. Members Allowances 
 
The total amount of members’ allowances payable in 2005/06 was £988,219 (£909,235 in 
2004/05). 
 
13. Related Party Transactions 
 
This disclosure has been produced using specific declarations obtained from Members and 
Chief Officers and other information held in council registers. The disclosure is based upon the 
council’s interpretation and understanding of financial reporting standard number 8 (FRS8) and 
its applicability to the public sector using current advice and guidance. 

 
Some charitable bodies with which members are involved have made small investments with the 
council.  These are not significant to the council but may be so for individuals.  As at 31 March 
2006, the total sum of these loans is £37,100. 

 

A number of members have also been appointed by the council to serve as trustees or 
representatives to various local organisations that receive grant funding from the council. These 
commitments are recorded in the register of Members’ interests. 

References within the Consolidated Revenue Account and Cash Flow statements detail 
transactions between the Government (grants), Pension Fund (contributions) and the council, 
 
15. Pooled Budgets 
 
Section 31 of the Health Act 1999 and the Local Authorities Partnership Arrangement 
Regulations 2000 provide for partnership arrangements between National Health Service (NHS) 
bodies, local authorities and other agencies to improve health services by pooling resources and 
integrating services to client groups.  The council and Barnet Primary Care Trust (BPCT) Health 
and Social Care Partnership operate various partnership boards, however budgets are not 
pooled but are managed by jointly appointed officers, each partner remaining responsible for 
their respective costs.  The only exception is the pooled budget for community equipment. 
 
The actual expenditure on the pooled budget for community equipment was – 

2005/06 2004/05

Total LBB
Barnet 
PCT (1) Total LBB

Barnet 
PCT (1)

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Purchasing of equipment 1,436 1,005 431 880 618 262
Contract Management 468 309 159 458 302 156
Stock adjustment    (2) (255) (255) 0 99 99 0

1,649 1,059 590 1,437 1,019 418
Contributions (1,320) (730) (590) (1,277) (859) (418)

329 329 0 160 160 0
 

 (1) in the Council’s revenue accounts 
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(2) stock adjustment reflects re-valued stock. The Council’s accounts only shows its share of the                     
stock and is included in the figures shown note 8 of the consolidated balance sheet. 

16. Audit Fees 
 
The costs to the authority for external audit and inspection fees are:- 

2005/06 2004/05
£’000 £’000

Fees payable to RSM Robson Rhodes LLP, who are 
auditors of the council appointed by the Audit Commission, 
with regard to external audit services carried out 

516 370

Fees payable to  the Audit Commission, in respect of 
statutory inspection 35 91

Fees payable to RSM Robson Rhodes LLP, who are 
auditors of the council appointed by the Audit Commission, 
for the certification of grant claims and returns

119 211

 
17.  Public Finance Initiative (PFI) 
 
Following the submission of the Outline Business Case, the Council obtained government 
approval to procure jointly with Enfield a PFI street lighting contract worth (for Barnet) £132m, 
over 25 years. The contract commenced in April 2006. This will involve 6,000 items of street 
furniture and increasing the number of public lighting columns to around 30,000. 
 
Housing Revenue Account 
 
This account records the transactions relating to the council’s housing stock. The Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989 requires its separation. This gives a clear picture of the cost 
of providing homes for council tenants. Housing Revenue Account income and expenditure does 
not affect the amount of council tax levied. 
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Notes
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income
Rents (gross) – dwellings (38,489) (37,970)
                       - garages (709) (653)
                       - other (815) (40,013) (660) (39,283)
Charges for services and facilities (6,983) (5,653)
Reduction in Provision for Bad Debt 0 (144)

Total Income (46,996) (45,080)

Expenditure
Repairs and maintenance 8,667 8,279
Supervision and management 20,185 20,535
Rents, rates, taxes etc. 1,276 154
Rent rebates 540 564
Cost of Capital Charge 39,156 29,391
Depreciation 10 15,636 12,447
Amortisation of Deferred Charges 715 0
Debt Management Expenses 63 48
Provision for bad debts 330 0
HRA Subsidy payable 5 9,153 7,489

Total Expenditure 95,721 78,907

Net Cost of Services 48,725 33,827

Asset Management Revenue account 
Balance (39,179) (28,861)
Amortisation of premium on early repayment 
of debt 378
Interest on mortgages (96) (108)
Interest on balances (312) (408) (204) (312)

Net Operating (Income)/Expenditure 9,516 4,654

Capital expenditure financed from Revenue 6 100 718
Transfer to/(from) Major Repairs Reserve (7,523) (4,150)
(Surplus)/deficit for the year 2,093 1,222

2005 2,004
£'000 £'000

Revenue Balances
Balances at the beginning of the year (5,797) (7,019)
(Surplus)/deficit for the year 2,093 1,222
Balance at the year end (3,704) (5,797)

Major Repairs Reserve
Balance at beginning of year 4 (235) (1,317)
(Surplus)/deficit for the year (4,795) 1,082
Balance at the year end (5,030) (235)

2005/06 2004/05

 
 
Housing Revenue Account Notes 
 
1. Dwelling Stock 
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The authority’s dwelling stock comprised, at 31st March 2006 2005
Houses/Bungalows 3,771 3,785
Flats/Maisonettes 7,235 7,288
Hostels/Bed sits 91 87

11,097 11,160

 
2. Arrears 
 
Arrears owed to the HRA at the year end:

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Leaseholder service charges 2,275 1,911
  less bad debt provision (739) 1,536 (668) 1,243
Housing rents 3,153 2,821
  less bad debt provision (1,447) 1,706 (1,226) 1,595
Commercial rents 140 53
  less bad debt provision (45) 95 (6) 47
Net arrears position at 31st March 3,337 2,885

2005/06 2004/05

 
3. Balance Sheet Value of HRA Assets 
 

Dwellings
Land and 
Buildings Totals

£'000 £'000 £'000
Balance Sheet Value at 1st April 2005 791,192 21,225 812,417
Balance Sheet Value at 31st March 2006 1,093,000 16,657 1,109,657

 
The vacant possession value of dwellings within the HRA at 31st March 2006 is £1,735m. The 
difference between this value and the balance sheet value represents the economic cost of 
providing council housing. 

 
4. Major Repairs Reserve 
 
The major repairs allowance was introduced in 2001/02. It represents the estimated long-term 
average amount of capital spending required to maintain the housing stock in its current 
condition. 
 
Direction 7(5) of the HRA (Accounting Practices) Directions 2000 requires authorities to disclose 
in the HRA accounts a note setting out an analysis of movements in the Major Repairs Reserve. 

2005/06 2004/05
£'000 £'000

Opening Balance as at 1st April (235) (1,317)
Capital expenditure charged to reserve (dwellings) 3,421 9,483
Depreciation
          - dwellings (MRA) (15,205) (11,978)
          - non-dwellings (431) (428)
Transfer to Housing Revenue Account
          - dwellings (MRA) 7,093 3,681
          - non-dwellings 431 428
Interest on Balances (104) (104)
Closing Balance as at 31st March (5,030) (235)

 
5. HRA Subsidy 
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The HRA subsidy relating to the authority was as follows: 
 

2005/06 2004/05
£'000 £'000

Management and maintenance 18,363 17,792
Major repairs allowance 8,112 8,297
ALMO Allowance 0 169
Admissable Allowance 100 150
ASB Allowance 0 1
Charges for capital 2,652 2,513
Other items of reckonable expenditure 57 57
Interest on receipts (83) (210)
Rent (37,792) (36,531)
Total for year (8,591) (7,762)
Prior year adjustments (562) 273
Total Receivable/(Payable) (9,153) (7,489)

 
6. HRA Capital Expenditure 
 
The analysis of HRA capital expenditure and financing was as follows:- 
 

2005/06 2004/05
Expenditure £'000 £'000
Houses 25,924 19,483
Other property 0 314
Total 25,924 19,797

2005/06 2004/05
Financing £'000 £'000
Credit approvals 17,977 6,678
Useable capital receipts 4,127 2,918
Revenue contributions 100 718
Major repairs reserve 3,421 9,483
Other contributions 299 0
Total 25,924 19,797

 
7. Capital Receipts from Disposals 
 
Capital receipts from disposals within the authority’s HRA were as follows:- 
 

2005/06 2004/05
£'000 £'000

Land 0 296
Houses 5,879 18,249
Paid over to pool (2,063) (3,218)
Total 3,816 15,327

 
8. Cost of Capital Charges 
 
The cost of capital charge represents a notional interest charged to the HRA for the use of its 
operational assets. This is calculated as 3.5% of the value of HRA operational assets for the use 
of those assets. 
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9. Capital Asset Charges Accounting Adjustment 
 
The capital asset charges accounting adjustment represents the difference between the cost of 
capital charge and the HRA interest costs as calculated in accordance with the Item 8 Debit 
(General) Determination. 
 
10. Depreciation Charge 
 
The total charge for depreciation within the HRA is:- 2005/06 2004/05

£'000 £'000
Houses 15,205 11,978
Other property 431 469
Total depreciation charged 15,636 12,447

 
The housing stock was revalued during 2005/06 which identified depreciation of £15,205m.  
 
11. ALMO – Barnet Homes Ltd 
 
With effect from 1 April 2004, the management of all the housing stock of the council was 
transferred to Barnet Homes Ltd, an Arms Length Management Organisation (ALMO) wholly 
owned by the authority.  
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Collection Fund 
 
The collection fund is a statutory fund, separate from all other council funds. It accounts for 
council tax and non-domestic rates to Barnet and the Greater London Authority, the two bodies 
for whom the income has been raised. 
 
Income and Disbursement Account 2005/06 
 

Note
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income
Council Tax 1 147,208 143,203

Council Tax Benefits 22,570 21,241
Collectable business rates 2 79,117 73,556

248,895 238,000
Disbursement

Precepts:
 - London Borough of Barnet 134,172 131,273
 - Greater London Authority 34,463 168,635 32,578 163,851

Estimated deficit on collection fund: 3
 - London Borough of Barnet (1,303) (947)
 - Greater London Authority (323) (1,626) (233) (1,180)

Non-Domestic Rates
 - Payment to national pool 78,682 73,121

 - Cost of collection allowance 435 79,117 435 73,556
Total disbursed 246,126 236,227

Provision for non-payment on council tax 4 3,390 893
Fund surplus / (deficit) for year (621) 880

248,895 238,000

Fund balance brought forward (984) (1,864)
Fund surplus / (deficit) for year (621) 880
Fund balance carried forward (1,605) (984)

2005/06 2004/05

INCOME AND DISBURSEMENT ACCOUNT 2005/06
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Notes to Collection Fund 
 
1. Council Tax 
 
Council tax is charged according to the Government’s valuation of residential properties as at 1st 
April 1991. The spread of valuations is classified into eight bands on which individual charges 
are calculated. The standard charge is found by taking the total amount of income required by 
the collection fund’s two preceptors and dividing this by the council tax base. The tax base is the 
total number of chargeable properties in all valuation bands converted to an equivalent number 
of band D dwellings, with an allowance made for discounts and exemptions. The amount of 
council tax required from a property in any tax band is the band D charge (£1,245.90 for 
2005/06) multiplied by the ratio specified for that band. The figures at the time of tax base 
calculation for the bands A to H were: 
 

  

Band Ratio
No. of Band D 

Equivalents

A 0.67 872
B 0.78 5,371
C 0.89 18,736
D 1.00 24,620
E 1.22 31,381
F 1.44 24,145
G 1.67 23,279
H 2.00 6,676

MOD contribution 273
Tax Base 135,353

 
 
   
2. National non-domestic rates 
 
Barnet collects non-domestic rates (NDR) from local businesses and organisations and pays 
them into the Government’s central NDR pool. The Government’s national uniform rate, 42.2p in 
2005/06 (45.6p in 2004/05) multiplied by the property’s rateable value determine the amount 
charged. The aggregate business valuation for the borough at 31st March 2006 was £234.7m 
(£190.0m at 31/3/2005, NB a revaluation came into effect 1st April 2005).  
 
The amount paid to the central NDR pool is redistributed to local authorities, including Barnet, in 
line with their population. Barnet’s share equalled a standard amount per head of population for 
Outer London (£333.24) multiplied by 324,370 (Barnet’s population) which gave £108.1m. This 
was paid directly into the general fund. 
 
3. Collection fund surplus and deficit 
 
The preceptors share council tax surpluses and deficits. 
 
4. Council Tax Written Off 
 
Where persons have absconded owing Council tax and, over several years, the money has 
proved irrecoverable, the arrears are prudently written out of the accounts to give a true picture 
of income it is reasonable to expect to receive. The arrears are still pursued. 
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 
 
This statement summarises the council’s assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2006. 
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   31st March 2006
Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Fixed assets
Operational assets
    Council dwellings 1,093,000 791,192
    Other land and buildings 449,104 379,590
    Community Assets 6,452 274
    Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment 6,437 8,517
    Infrastructure assets 55,311 1,610,304 46,094 1,225,667

Non-operational assets
    Investment Properties 18,570 17,317
    Surplus Assets Awaiting Disposal 12,525 2,462
    Assets Under Construction 25,368 56,463 2,731 22,510

1 1,666,767 1,248,177

Intangible Assets 3 16,924 16,016
Long term debtors 4 3,941 11,086
Long term investments 11 11

Total long term assets 1,687,643 1,275,290
Current assets
Stocks and works in progress 8 1,446 1,222
Temporary investments 191,050 39,395
Debtors 9 54,046 52,934
Payments in advance 2,890 1,951
Imprest accounts and school balances 19,151 10,273

268,583 105,775
Current liabilities
Creditors 9 (188,065) (81,655)
Borrowing repayable within 12 months (139) (130)
Bank overdraft (9,497) (13,086)
Provisions 10 (9,870) (6,882)

(207,571) (101,753)
Net current assets 61,012 4,022

Long-term liabilities
Long term borrowing 11 (105,500) (28,500)
Deferred capital receipts 17 (1,800) (1,800)
Liability related to defined benefit pension scheme

16 (266,040) (268,610)
Total assets less liabilities 1,375,315 980,402

Financed by
Fixed asset restatement account ** 1,155,496 778,952
Capital financing account ** 364,026 370,543
Government grants - deferred 17 57,525 48,616
Usable capital receipts 30,603 28,782
Pension reserve 16 (266,040) (268,610)
Major Repairs Reserve 5,030 235
Specific reserves ** 5,564 1,036
Balances – general fund 12 21,012 16,035
Balances – collection fund 14 (1,605) (984)
Balances – housing revenue account 3,704 5,797

Total equity 1,375,315 980,402
** Refer to Statement of Total Movement in Reserves

   31st March 2005
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Council 
Dwellings

Other Land 
&  Buildings

Community 
Assets

Vehicles, Plant & 
Equipment

Infra- 
structure

Investment 
Property

Surplus 
Assets

Assets Under 
Construction Totals

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Gross Book Value 1 April 2005 791,192 393,722 282 13,898 61,823 17,317 2,462 2,731 1,283,427
Accumulated Depreciation b/f 0 (14,133) (8) (5,381) (15,729) 0 0 0 (35,251)

Net Value b/f 791,192 379,589 274 8,517 46,094 17,317 2,462 2,731 1,248,176
Revaluations & adjustments 
to Restatement Account 301,404 59,921 6,184 0 0 1,253 10,513 (2,731) 376,544
Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2005/06 Expenditure 25,832 9,604 0 284 11,270 0 0 25,368 72,358
Disposals (11,233) 0 0 0 0 0 (450) 0 (11,683)
Depreciation write back & 
prior year adjustments 1,010 10,684 1 0 0 0 0 0 11,695
Depreciation for year (15,205) (10,694) (7) (2,364) (2,053) (30,323)
Net book value 31 March 
2006 1,093,000 449,104 6,452 6,437 55,311 18,570 12,525 25,368 1,666,767

Accumulated Depreciation c/f (15,205) (14,143) (15) (7,745) (17,782) 0 0 0 (54,890)  
 
 
 

N
otes to the C

onsolidated B
alance Sheet 

 1. 
M

ovem
ent of fixed assets 2005/06 
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2. Financing of capital expenditure 
 
Below is the financing of the year’s capital expenditure on fixed assets and deferred charges: 
 

£'000 £'000
Capital receipts 10,471
MRA 3,421
Contributions including Section 106 receipts 20,535
Revenue contributions 1,091
Borrowing 41,755 77,273
Less:- 2004/05 Expenditure financed in 2005/06 (285)
Plus:- 2005/06 Expenditure financed in 2006/07 1,657

78,645

The money was spent on:
Barnet’s fixed assets 72,358
Intangible assets (note 3) 6,287

78,645

 
 
3. Intangibles Assets 
 
Intangibles assets are assets that have no physical form but produce benefit to the council for more 
than just the year they are acquired. 
 

Balance at 
1/4/05

Expenditure in 
year

Written of the 
revenue in 
year

Balance at 
31/3/06

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Software 5,201 0 (578) 4,623
Other 10,815 6,287 (4,801) 12,301

16,016 6,287 (5,379) 16,924
 

 
Included within Other Intangible Assets are: 
  

• The advanced rental payment for the North London Business Park site which is being written 
down over the life of the rental agreement.  

 
• The capitalised cost of redundancy payments and pension enhancements for staff granted 

early retirements on the basis of identified efficiency savings in line with government 
guidelines. This is amortised over five years.  

 
• HRA capitalised debt redemption premium which is amortised over ten years. 

 
• The capital spend on voluntary aided schools where the council does not actually own the 

buildings but uses them to provide education amortised over ten years. 
 
All intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method. 
 
4. Long term debtors 
 
There was an decrease in the investment position during the year from an opening balance of 
£11.806m to a closing position of £3,941m.  
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5. Assets Held 
 
Below is a guide to the number of assets owned by the authority: - 
 

31st March 31st March
Assets 2006 2005
Schools – nursery and primary                            * 49 57
Schools – secondary and special                        * 18 12
Schools – referral units 1 1
Youth service facilities 7 8
Other educational establishments 2 2
Libraries 16 16
Museums 2 2
Children’s homes and hostels 2 2
Homes for people with learning disabilities          3 3
Adolescent Resource Centre 1 1
Children and family centres 5 5
Day centres for the physically disabled 1 1
Day centres for the mentally ill 2 2
Council dwellings 11,264 11,160
Garages 2,892 2,651
Borough roads and footpaths (length in km) 696 696
Car parks 24 24
Memorials, etc 23 23
Parks and open spaces 174 174
Sports grounds 28 28
Golf courses 3 3
All weather playing areas 2 2
Athletics tracks 1 1
Swimming pools 3 3
Allotments (area in hectares) 91.00 94.90
Public offices 8 9
Other Buildings 5 4
Vacant awaiting disposal 26 0
School Land not attached to schools 14 0
 
*   Excludes 41 voluntary aided schools, as the council does not own these. 
 
6. Capital commitments 
 
At 31st March 2006, the council was contractually committed to expenditure amounting to some 
£22.15m. The schemes are summarised across services as follows:- 
 

£’000
Educational services 2,389
Housing 14,837
Highways 3,807
Resources 1,114

22,147
 

 
7. Fixed asset valuation 
 
The Council’s chief valuer, Brian Smart (MRICS) values the authority’s freehold property 
portfolio following the statements of asset valuation practice and the guidance notes of the 
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Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The values are updated as part of a rolling five-year 
programme.  
 
Operational properties are at either open market value, for existing use, or the depreciated 
replacement cost where no market for the asset exists. Houses in the balance sheet are at a 
discounted value to take account of the properties being social housing. Non-operational assets 
and investment properties are priced on an open market basis. Valuations do not include 
equipment and infrastructure (e.g. roads) that are included at historic cost. 
 
8. Stocks and works in progress 
 

2005/06 2004/05
£’000 £’000

Works in progress - rechargeable works 0 64
- works in default 27 51

Stores - housing stores 208 260
- transport stores 73 46
- road signs and equipment 138 80
- social services aids for the disabled 770 515
- on-site engineering and catering stocks 136 115
- other 94 91

1,446 1,222

 
Under a pooled budget agreement with Barnet PCT, ownership of the stock relating to 
community equipment stores passed to the council on 1July 2003, but will be split and 
apportioned between the PCT and the council pro rata to their respective contributions in the 
event that this agreement be terminated. 
 
9. Debtors and Creditors 
 
The analysis of debtors and creditors at the year end is as follows:- 
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2005/06 2004/05
£'000 £'000

Debtors
Other local authorities 1,577 1,786
Government departments 11,419 21,166
Ratepayers and taxpayers 20,661 21,293
Tenants (including temporary accommodation) 9,015 7,152
Other public bodies 364 3,303
Utilities (90) 301
Sundry debtors 41,326 22,810

84,272 77,811
Less: Provision for bad debts (30,226) (24,877)

54,046 52,934
Creditors
Other local authorities 6,442 6,427
Government departments 2,952 9,825
Ratepayers and taxpayers 6,119 5,963
Other public bodies 671 1,432
Utilities 429 65
Sundry creditors 73,975 51,934
* Pension Fund 88,300 0
Receipts in advance 9,177 6,009

188,065 81,655
 

 
* The majority of this closing creditor position belonged to the Pension Fund, a balance of £88m. 
This balance is primarily due to the funds held at the bank. The General Fund share of this 
balance was £94.56m. The increase in the General Fund share is primarily down to the new 
borrowing of £77m undertaken last year for the capital programme. 
 
The pension fund position is due to a change of fund managers and the sale by the old fund 
manager of stocks not required by the new fund manager, these transactions took place in late 
March and resulted in a cash receipt of between £75 to £80m. 
 
10. Provisions 
 
Provisions are amounts set aside to meet future liabilities where the amount or timing is 
uncertain. 
 

Balance Contributions Expenditure/ Balance
01/04/2005 Reductions 31/03/2006

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Planning Costs (26) (225) 26 (225)
Grants to Voluntary Sector (60) 0 65 5
Insurance (5,394) (1,683) 326 (6,751)
Pension provision 0 (1,486) 0 (1,486)
Legal (742) 0 280 (462)
Other provisions (660) (706) 415 (951)

(6,882) (4,100) 1,112 (9,870)

 
i. The planning provision is for e-planning and corporate IT integration initiatives and 

various smaller projects. 

ii. The grants provision is for delayed draw down of approved grants to the voluntary 
sector. 
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iii. The insurance provision is for liabilities that have occurred but the timing of the payment 
is dependent upon the claim settlement process. This is to meet in the year insurance 
claim payments which fall within the excess and aggregate limits of external insurance 
cover. The provision reflects 100% of its ultimate projected liabilities. Further information 
on this provision and its future requirements are set out in the Statement of Accounting 
Policies. 

iv. The legal provision is for the investigative and insurance costs relating to a case referred 
to the Ombudsman and the inquiry into the sale of the Underhill football ground.  

v. Included in other are various smaller provisions for community groups and projects.  

 
11. Long term borrowing 
 

2005/06 2004/05
£'000 £'000

Lenders
Public Works Loan Board 81,000 19,000
Other 24,500 9,500

105,500 28,500

Maturing within more than 1 and up to 2 years 5,000 0
Maturing within more than 2 and up to 5 years 15,500 8,500
Maturing within more than 5 and up to 10 years 13,000 4,000
Maturing  with more than 15 and upto 20 years 2,000 16,000
Maturing  with more than 20 and upto 25 years 28,000 0
Maturing  with more than 25 and upto 30 years 22,000 0
Maturing  over 30 years 20,000 0

105,500 28,500

 
 
 
 
12. Revenue balances 
 

2005/06 2004/05
£‘000 £‘000

General fund  - general surplus (i) 10,487 5,005
 - earmarked school balances (ii) 10,525 11,030

21,012 16,035

 
i. The general surplus is the authority’s buffer against unpredictable events that are too 

large to be met from reductions in current budgeted expenditure.  
 

ii. In the general fund are locally managed schools’ balances. Schools may carry balances, 
surplus or deficit, forward to subsequent years.  

 
13. Trust funds 
 
The authority is trustee of two charitable trusts. Only one is significant, the Avenue House 
bequest. This is managed and administered by the Avenue House Estate Management Charity 
(AHEM). AHEM are a charity in their own right totally independent of Barnet as such no 
balances or transactions of the trust appear in Barnet’s accounts. 
 
The council does hold small sums for two children in the authority’s guardianship and for the 
New College of Speech and Drama charity. 
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14. Collection fund balances 
 
The council has to record transactions for council tax, business rates and residual community 
charge in the collection fund account. The balance will be paid to or recovered from the council 
and its preceptor in future years. 
 

2005/06 2004/05
£'000 £'000

Barnet 1,284 783
Greater London Authority 321 201

1,605 984
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
15. Pension Fund 
Note 10 to the Consolidated Revenue Account contains details of the authority’s participation in 
pension schemes. The Pension Fund accounts also provide further information. 

 
The underlying assets and liabilities for retirement benefits attributable to the authority were: -  
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2005/06 2004/05
£'000 £'000
LBB LBB

Estimated liabilities in scheme (640,480) (573,970)

Estimated assets in scheme 374,440 305,360

Net asset/(liability) (266,040) (268,610)

2005/06 2004/05
% %

Rate of inflation 3.10 2.90
4.60 4.40

Pension increases 3.10 2.90

4.90 5.40

Salary increases (NB based on 1.5% real)

Rate for discouting scheme liabilities (NB 
based on 2.4% real)

 
 
The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the authority has, in the long-run, to pay 
retirement benefits. The total liability of £266.040m has a substantial impact on the net worth of 
the authority as recorded in the balance sheet, resulting in a negative overall balance. The 
deficit will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining working life of 
employees, as assessed by the scheme.  
 
An actuarial review was carried out in order to calculate the figures required under FRS 17. In 
calculating the Authority’s assets and liabilities, the fund’s actuaries had to make a number of 
assumptions about events and circumstances in the future, meaning that the result of actuarial 
calculations are subject to uncertainties and assumptions within a range of possible values.  
 
The following actuarial assumptions were made: - 
 
Assets in the funds are valued at fair value, principally market value for investments and consist 
of the following categories, by percentage of the total assets held by the fund: - 

Long-term 
return 2005/06 2004/05

% % %
Equities 7.40 72.87 67.50
Property 4.60 9.29 17.10
Bonds 5.50 11.90 9.90
Cash 4.60 5.95 5.50

 
 
16. Deferred Credits 
 
Deferred capital receipts reflect mortgage loans given to council tenants to purchase council 
dwellings.  The amounts are written down by the annual repayments which are then transferred 
to usable capital receipts. 
 
Government grants deferred includes capital grants and any other external capital contributions 
(including Section 106 planning gain monies, gifts, bequests etc) that are credited to the balance 
sheet and amortised to revenue over the life of the relevant asset to offset charges for 
depreciation. 
 
17. Post Balance Sheet Events 
 
There are no post balance sheet events. 
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18. Contingent Liabilities 
 
The combined total of claims against the council that have been received by the council’s 
insurance team could, in extremis, expose the authority to liability greater than is shown in the 
balance sheet. The likelihood of the liability  fully materialising in any one year is remote.  
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Statement of Total Movement in Reserves 
 
This statement brings together all the recognised gains and losses of the authority during 
2005/06 and shows those which have not otherwise been identified in the Consolidated 
Revenue Account. The statement separates revenue and capital. 
 

Notes 2005/06 2004/05
£'000 £'000

Surplus / (deficit) for year
- General Fund 4,977 4,285
- Housing Revenue Account (2,093) (1,222)
- Collection Fund (621) 880

Add back movements on earmarked revenue reserves 6 4,528 (109)
Deduct appropriations from pension reserve (11,200) (9,110)
Actuarial gains and losses relating to pensions 13,770 (67,290)
Total increase / (decrease) in revenue resources 1 9,361 (72,566)

Increase / (decrease) in useable capital receipts (5,942) 9,683

Increase / (decrease) in unapplied capital grants & contributions 7,763 1,598

Total  increase / (decrease) in realised capital resources 2 1,821 11,281

Gains / (losses) on revaluation of fixed assets 388,227 873
Impairment losses on fixed assets due to general changes in 
prices 0 0

Total increase / (decrease) in unrealised value of fixed assets 3a 388,227 873

Value of assets sold, disposed of or decommissioned 3b (11,683) (23,870)

Revenue resources set aside 4b (6,517) (4)
Movement relating to Government Grants Deferred 4c 8,910 12,218
Movement on Major Repairs Reserve 4,795 (1,082)
Total increase / (decrease) in amounts set aside to finance 
capital investment 7,188 11,132

Total recognised gains and losses 394,914 (73,150)

 
The notes give further detail on the movements summarised above. 
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Notes to Statement of Total Movement in Reserves 
 
1. Movements in revenue resources 
 
This shows the movements on all the council’s revenue accounts. See also note 5 below. 
 

General 
Fund HRA Revenue 

Reserves
Collection 

Fund
Pension 
Reserve

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Surplus / (Deficit) for 2005/06 4,977 (2,093) 0 (621) 0
Appropriations to / (from) revenue 0 0 4,528 0 (11,200)
Actuarial gain and losses relating to pensions 0 0 0 0 13,770
1) Movement on Revenue Resources 4,977 (2,093) 4,528 (621) 2,570
Balance b/fd at 1 April 2005 16,035 5,797 1,036 (984) (268,610)
Balance c/fd at 31 March 2006 21,012 3,704 5,564 (1,605) (266,040)

 
2. Movements in realised capital resources 
 
This identifies capital receipts and grants received in the year. 
 
Useable capital receipts represent the proportion of income from the sale of fixed assets that 
can, under government legislation, be used to fund capital expenditure.  
 
Unapplied capital grants and contributions arise from receipts of government grants and 
contributions by individuals to fund capital projects. 
  

Useable 
capital 
receipts

Unapplied capital 
grants & 

Contributions
Total

£'000 £'000 £'000
Amounts receivable in 2005/06 6,592 28,298 34,890
Less amounts payable to housing capital receipts pool (2,063) - (2,063)
Amounts applied to finance new capital investment in 2005/06 (10,471) (20,535) (31,006)
2) Total increase / (decrease) in realised capital resources in 
2005/06 (5,942) 7,763 1,821
Balance brought forward at 1 April 2005 21,156 7,626 28,782
Balance carried forward at 31 March 2006 15,214 15,389 30,603
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3. Fixed Asset Restatement Account - movement in unrealised value of fixed assets (3a) 

and  value of assets disposed or decommissioned (3b) 
 
The account represents the difference between the cost of fixed assets and their latest 
valuation.  The account is constantly updated for disposals, new valuations and that expenditure 
which, although capitalised under current legislation, does not affect fixed asset values but 
increases their useful lives. 
 

Fixed Asset 
Restatement 

Account
£'000

Movement in unrealised value of fixed assets :-
Gains / (losses) on revaluation of fixed assets in 2005/06 376,544
Write back of depreciation 11,695
Adjustments (12)
Impairment losses on fixed assets due to general changes in 
prices in 2005/06 0
3a) Total Increase /(decrease) in unrealised capital resources 
2005/06 388,227
3b) Amounts written off fixed asset balance sheet for 
disposals or decommissioning in 2005/06 (11,683)
Total movement on account in 2005/06 376,544
Balance brought forward at 1 April 2005 778,952
Balance carried forward at 31 March 2006 1,155,496

 
 
Further information on the valuation of fixed assets is shown in note 1 of the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



London Borough of Barnet Statement of Accounts 2005/06 
  

72

 
 
 
 
 
4. Movements in amounts set aside to finance capital investment (Notes 4a, 4b and 4c) 
The Capital Financing Account shows resources both capital and revenue that have been used 
to finance capital expenditure. Also included are appropriations to the revenue account where 
the minimum revenue provision (MRP) for debt repayment is exceeded by the asset charges to 
the service revenue accounts. 
 
The Government Grants Deferred Account represents grants and contributions received to fund 
capital expenditure. These are released to revenue to offset depreciation in respect of the fixed 
assets to which they relate. The account also includes planning agreement monies (S106). 
 

Capital 
Financing 

Account

Government 
Grants Deferred

Total

£'000 £'000 £'000
Net contribution from revenue
- Intangible Assets (5,379) 0 (5,379)
- MRP adjustment including 11,077 0 11,077

HRA MRP 0 0 0
Other Adjustments 0 0
Major Repairs Reserve Applied (7,523) 0 (7,523)

HRA MRA / depreciation (8,113) 0 (8,113)
HRA MRA - capital expenditure charged to reserve   3,421 0 3,421
4b) Total revenue resources set aside in 2005/06  (6,517) 0 (6,517)

Grants applied to capital investment in 2005/06 16,189 16,189
Adjustments 0 0
Amounts credited to Asset Management Account in 2005/06 (7,279) (7,279)
4c) Movements on government grants deferred account 0 8,910 8,910

( ) p
investment (6,517) 8,910 2,393

Balance brought forward at 1 April 2005 370,543 48,616 419,159
Balance carried Forward at 31 March 2006 364,026 57,526 421,552

 
5. Pension Fund Reserves 
 

The actuarial gains identified as movements on the pensions reserve in 2005/06 may be 
analysed into the following categories, measured as an absolute amount and as a percentage of 
the assets or liabilities as at 31 March 2005. 
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£000 % £000 %
Differences between the expected and actual 
return on assets 51,400 13.7 6,070 2.0
Differences between actuarial assumptions 
about liabilities and actual experience 32,420 5.1 9,520 1.7
Changes in the demographic and financial 
assumptions used to estimate liabilities (70,050) (82,880)

13,770 2.1 (67,290) (11.7)

2005/06 2004/05

 

 

 

 

 

6. Specific Reserves  
 
The movements in revenue reserves in the year were: 
 

Balance 1/4/05
To 

Reserves
From 

Reserves
Balance 
31/3/06

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Reserves for capital projects (153) (1,000) 153 (1,000)
Donations (205) 0 204 (1)
Lottery fund (130) 0 13 (117)
Parking account (12) (4,910) 4,852 (70)
Restructure Reserve 0 (3,000) 0 (3,000)
Utilities reserve 0 (500) 0 (500)
IS Licence reserve 0 (500) 0 (500)
Section 106 (185) (105) 102 (188)
Other (351) (14) 177 (188)

(1,036) (10,029) 5,501 (5,564)
 

 
Apart from the housing revenue account, which is solely for housing, the Local Government Act 
1988 only allows the authority one revenue account, its general fund. For good financial 
management however, it is desirable to earmark specific reserves within the fund: 

 
i. The general fund (GF) reserve for capital projects is available for any expenditure of a 

capital nature. Under regulations only revenue contributions and repayments of 
advances may be made to this reserve.  

 
ii. Donations comprise money given to the council for specific schemes for the benefit of 

the community. 
 

iii. Remaining undistributed balances of the lottery that the council used to run. The Cabinet 
Resources Committee of the council controls distribution. 

 
iv. By law the authority must maintain a ring fenced parking account. This holds income 

from street parking charges. The money must initially be spent to improve parking 
facilities but money in excess of those requirements may be used for certain highways 
projects. 
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v. The  general reserve for future projects has now been fully utilised. 
vi. Section 106 is the revenue element of money received from planning gains. The capital 

element is held within capital receipts. 
 
vii. Other reserves include amounts held to meet uncommitted potential future costs. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cashflow Statement 
 
This consolidated statement summarises the movement between the authority and third parties, 
both for capital and revenue purposes. 
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£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
REVENUE ACTIVITIES
Cash Outflows
  Cash paid to and for employees 301,450 264,373
  Other operating costs 319,391 345,929
  Housing benefits 129,605 110,037
  Non-domestic rate pool 78,682 63,604
  Collection fund precept payments 34,463 863,591 32,578 816,521

Cash Inflows
  Council tax etc. receipts (173,334) (160,872)
  NDR receipt from national pool (108,094) (89,499)
  Non-domestic rate receipts (79,552) (70,981)
  Revenue support grant (130,374) (135,069)
  Rents (43,031) (39,330)
  DSS Rebate grants (149,372) (114,478)
  Other Government grants (77,668) (73,998)
  Cash received for goods and services (144,705) (906,130) (143,863) (828,090)
  (see note 1) (42,539) (11,569)

SERVICING OF FINANCE
Cash Outflows
  Interest paid 1,485 238

Cash Inflows
  Interest received (2,993) (1,508) (416) (178)

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
Cash Outflows
  Purchase of fixed assets 70,986 52,436
  Deferred charges and long term debtors 6,287 8,839
Payments to housing capital receipts pool 2,063 0

79,336 61,275
Cash Inflows
  Sale of fixed assets (6,592) (24,610)
  Capital grants received (28,298) (8,841)
  Other cash income (6,266) (15,415)

(41,156) 38,180 (48,866) 12,409
Net cash inflow before financing (5,867) 662

MANAGEMENT OF LIQUID RESOURCES
Net (increase)/decrease in short term deposits (81,246) 3,295

FINANCING
Cash Outflows
  Repayment of short term loans 0 0 27,079 27,079

Cash Inflows
  New short term loans (9) 0
  New long term loans (77,000) (28,500)
  Long term investment 151,655 74,646 0 (28,500)
(INCREASE) / DECREASE IN CASH ANDCASH 
EQUIVALENTS (SEE NOTE 3)

(12,467) 2,536

2005/06 2004/05
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Notes to Cashflow Statement 
 
1. Revenue Reconciliation 
 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
(Surplus) / deficit for the year:
- General fund (4,976) (4,285)
- Housing revenue account 2,093 1,222

(2,883) (3,063)
- Collection fund 621 (2,262) (880) (3,943)

Minimum revenue provision and capital expenditure 
funded by revenue activities (5,473) (3,854)
Contributions to / (from) reserves and provisions (14,795) (3,883)
Capital creditors 1,372 (18,896) (741) (8,478)

Interest paid (1,485) (238)
Interest received 2,993 1,508 416 178

(Increase) / decrease in creditors (106,410) (2,903)
Increase / (decrease) in payments in advance 939 (217)
Increase in stock and works in progress 224 (216)
Increase / (decrease) in debtors 1,112 (104,135) 4,010 674
Pension Fund cash 81,246

(42,539) (11,569)

2005/06 2004/05

 
2. Movements in liquid resources 
 

Balance 
Sheet 

31/3/05
2004/05 

Movement

Balance 
Sheet 

31/3/04
2003/04 

Movement
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Debtors 54,046 1,112 52,934 4,010
creditors 0 (2,903)
Creditors (188,065) (106,410) (81,655)
Stocks and works in progress 1,446 224 1,222 (216)
Payments in advance 2,890 939 1,951 (217)

(129,683) (104,135) (25,548) 674

 
There has been no change in the council’s policy on temporary investments that are managed in-
house. 

   
3. Movements in cash and cash equivalents 
 

Balance 
Sheet 

31/3/06

2005/06 
Movement

Balance 
Sheet 

31/3/05

2004/05 
Movement

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Imprest accounts 19,151 8,878 10,273 140
Cash overdrawn (9,497) 3,589 (13,086) (2,676)
Total 9,654 12,467 (2,813) (2,536)
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4. Reconciliation of net cashflow to movement in net debt 
 

2005/06 2004/05
Movement in net debt £'000 £'000
  Movement of cash in year 12,467 (2,536)
  Cash outflow from long term borrowing (77,000) (28,500)
  Short term borrowing cashflow (9) 27,079
  Movement in net debt in year (64,542) (3,957)
  Opening net debt (31,443) (27,486)

(95,985) (31,443)

Balance 
Sheet 

2005/06

Balance 
Sheet 

2004/05
Analysis of net debt £'000 £'000
  Temporary borrowing (139) (130)
  Long term borrowing (105,500) (28,500)
  Imprests 19,151 10,273
  Cash (9,497) (13,086)

(95,985) (31,443)

 
5. Other Government Grants 
 

 
2005/06 2004/05

£'000 £'000
Mandatory student awards 0 89
Education 46,618 43,376
Community care and other social services 23,206 23,473
Asylum Seekers 1,512 2,997
Council tax benefits administration 2,175 2,442
Housing subsidy (excluding MRA) 2,591 0
Other 1,566 1,621

77,668 73,998
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SECTION 4 – Group Accounts 
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Group Revenue Account 
 
This shows the consolidated income and expenditure for the council and its subsidiary company 
on its day-to-day activities.  
 

2005/06 2004/05
Consolidated Net 

Expenditure Net Expenditure
On its services the Council spent:- £'000 £'000

Central services to the public 1,747 1,003

Cultural, environmental & planning services 44,771 48,837

Education services 180,523 171,509

Highways, roads & transport services 12,010 18,657

Housing services 15,914 7,180

Social services 102,851 101,151

Corporate & democratic core 4,419 4,442

Non distributed costs 5,458 16,684

NET COST OF SERVICES 367,693 369,463
Levies 1,231 1,896
Trading undertakings 816 897
Interest payable 2,037 448
Contribution of housing capital receipts to Government Pool 2,063 3,218
Interest receivable (3,114) (1,615)
Pension interest cost & expected return on Pension Assets 10,290 8,200
NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE 381,016 382,507

HRA contribution to/(from) balances (2,093) (1,222)
Contribution from earmarked reserves 4,528 (109)
Transfer from Capital Receipts from Housing Pool (2,063) (3,218)
Redistribution of LRB balances (36) (6)
Contribution (from) / to capital financing reserves for
       - adjustment for MRP 2,130 (8,948)
       - Early retirements 0 (2,490)
HRA Major Repairs Reserve (7,523) (4,109)
Minimum revenue provision HRA 0 0
Contribution from the pension reserve (11,200) (9,110)
AMOUNT TO BE MET FROM GOVERNMENT GRANT AND LOCAL 
TAXES 364,759 353,295

Revenue support grant (130,374) (135,070)
Contribution from non-domestic rate pool (108,094) (89,499)
Demand on collection fund (134,172) (131,273)
Transfer of collection fund deficit 1,303 947
SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR (6,578) (1,600)
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Group Balances 
 
GENERAL FUND BALANCES 2005/06 2005/06

£’000 £’000
Balance at beginning of year 15,139 11,750
Planned contribution to balances 0 3,000
Repayment of schools advances (983) 0
Prior year adjustments 0 (1,684)
Actuarial surplus/(deficit) on pension scheme (810) 676
Movement in deferred tax on pension scheme 243 (203)
Surplus / (Deficit) for the year 6,577 1,600

20,166 15,139
of which:-
General Fund 9,641 4,109
School Balances 10,525 11,030

20,166 15,139
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Group Balance Sheet 
 

This statement summarises the groups assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2006. 
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   31st March 2006
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Fixed assets
Operational assets
    Council dwellings 1,093,000 791,192
    Other land and buildings 449,104 379,590
    Community Assets 6,452 274
    Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment 6,882 8,763
    Infrastructure assets 55,311 1,610,749 46,094 1,225,913

Non-operational assets
    Investment property 18,570 17,317
    Surplus Assets Awaiting Disposal 12,525 2,462
    Assets Under Construction 25,368 56,463 2,731 22,510

1,667,212 1,248,423

    Intangible Assets 16,924 16,016
    Long term debtors 3,941 10,586
    Long term investments 11 11

Total long term assets 1,688,088 1,275,036

Current assets
Stocks and works in progress 1,471 1,222
Temporary investments 190,550 39,395
Debtors 51,559 50,286
Payments in advance 2,890 1,951
Imprest accounts and school balances 19,151 10,273

265,621 103,127
Current liabilities
Creditors (188,093) (80,776)
Borrowing repayable within 12 months (139) (130)
Bank overdraft (6,334) (11,019)
Provisions (9,870) (6,882)

(204,436) (98,807)
Net current assets 61,185 4,320

Long-term liabilities
Long term borrowing (105,500) (28,500)
Long-term Provisions (31)
Deferred capital receipts (1,800) (1,800)
Liability related to defined benefit pension scheme (267,472) (268,610)

Total assets less liabilities 1,374,470 980,446

Financed by
Fixed asset restatement reserve 1,155,496 778,952
Capital financing reserve 364,026 370,543
Government grants - deferred 57,525 48,616
Usable capital receipts 30,603 28,782
Pension reserve (266,040) (268,610)
Major Repairs Reserve 5,030 235
Specific reserves 5,564 1,036
Balances – general fund 20,167 16,079
Balances – collection fund (1,605) (984)
Balances – housing revenue account 3,704 5,797

Total equity 1,374,470 980,446

   31st March 2005
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Group Statement of Total Movement in Reserves 
 

Notes 2005/06 2004/05
£'000 £'000

Surplus / (deficit) for year
- General Fund 5,520 4,329
- Housing Revenue Account (2,093) (1,222)
- Collection Fund (621) 880

Add back movements on earmarked revenue reserves 6 4,528 (109)
Deduct appropriations from pension reserve (11,200) (9,110)
Actuarial gains and losses relating to pensions 13,770 (67,290)
Total increase / (decrease) in revenue resources 1 9,904 (72,522)

Increase / (decrease) in useable capital receipts (5,942) 9,683

Increase / (decrease) in unapplied capital grants & contributions 7,763 1,598

Total  increase / (decrease) in realised capital resources 2 1,821 11,281

Gains / (losses) on revaluation of fixed assets 388,227 873
Impairment losses on fixed assets due to general changes in 
prices 0 0

Total increase / (decrease) in unrealised value of fixed assets 3a 388,227 873

Value of assets sold, disposed of or decommissioned 3b (11,683) (23,870)

Revenue resources set aside 4b (6,517) (4)
Movement relating to Government Grants Deferred 4c 8,910 12,218
Movement on Major Repairs Reserve 4,795 (1,082)
Total increase / (decrease) in amounts set aside to finance 
capital investment 7,188 11,132

Total recognised gains and losses 395,457 (73,106)
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Group Cashflow 
 
This consolidated statement summarises the movement between the group both for capital and revenue 
purposes.
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£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
REVENUE ACTIVITIES
Cash Outflows
  Cash paid to and for employees 301,450 264,373
  Other operating costs 319,391 345,929
  Housing benefits 129,605 110,037
  Non-domestic rate pool 78,682 63,604
  Collection fund precept payments 34,463 863,591 32,578 816,521

Cash Inflows
  Council tax etc. receipts (173,334) (160,872)
  NNDR receipt from national pool (108,094) (89,499)
  Non-domestic rate receipts (79,552) (70,981)
  Revenue support grant (130,374) (135,069)
  Rents (43,031) (39,330)
  DSS Rebate grants (149,372) (114,478)
  Other Government grants (77,668) (73,998)
  Cash received for goods and services (146,088) (907,513) (144,981) (829,208)
  (see note 1) (43,922) (12,687)

SERVICING OF FINANCE
Cash Outflows 0 0
  Interest paid 1,485 238

Cash Inflows 0 0
  Interest received (3,278) (1,793) (610) (372)

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
Cash Outflows
  Purchase of fixed assets 71,033 52,682
  Deferred charges and long term debtors 6,287 8,839
  Payments to housing capital receipts pool 2,063

79,383 61,521
Cash Inflows
  Sale of fixed assets (6,597) (24,610)
  Capital grants received (28,298) (8,841)
  Other cash income (6,266) (15,415)

(41,161) 38,222 (48,866) 12,655
Net cash inflow before financing (7,493) (404)

MANAGEMENT OF LIQUID RESOURCES

Net (increase)/decrease in short term 
deposits (81,246) 3,295
FINANCING
Cash Outflows
  Repayment of short term loans 30 30 27,079 27,079

Cash Inflows
  New short term loans (9) 0
  New long term loans (77,000) (29,000)
  Long term investment 151,655 74,646 0 (29,000)
(INCREASE) / DECREASE IN CASH 
ANDCASH EQUIVALENTS (SEE NOTE 3)

(14,064) 970

2005/06 2004/05
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Notes to Group Accounts 
 
1. Introduction 
 
The Authority has only one subsidiary company which it has full control and influence over. The 
primary aim in establishing this company is to remove it from public sector borrowing controls to 
allow greater commercial freedom. 
 
The Accounting Code of Practice requires that where an authority has material interests in one or 
more subsidiary and associated company, it should prepare a group revenue account and balance 
sheet. The aim of consolidation is to give an overall picture of the Authority’s financial activities and 
resources employed in  carrying out those activities. Following the establishment of Barnet Homes 
Ltd in April 2004, the Authority now has an interest in it as a subsidiary of the Council which is 
considered material, and thus group accounts have been prepared. 
 
2. Basis of consolidation 
 
The group revenue account and balance sheet have been prepared by consolidating the accounts 
of the subsidiary on a line-by-line basis. It should be noted that the accounts of the group  company 
has been prepared under similar accounting policies to the Authority. However, some accounting 
policies of Barnet Homes Ltd may differ in some respects from the Authority’s due to legislative 
requirements. Any material differences are noted in the Notes to the Consolidated Accounts. 
 
3. Arms Length Management Organisation for Housing – Barnet Homes Ltd (Companies 
House Registration: 4948659) 
 
i)  Nature of the business: 
 
Barnet Homes Ltd was created by Barnet Council to manage and improve its council homes and 
estates. It is a non-profit making company. 
 
Barnet Homes Ltd took over responsibility for managing approximately 11,000 council homes in 
Barnet from the 1st April 2004. It also took responsibility for almost 400 staff from the Council’s 
Housing Services Department. 
 
Barnet Homes Ltd is managed by a board of 15 members made up of five council nominees, four 
tenants, one lease holder and five independent with professional skills and experience to help run 
the services. Board members are volunteers and only receive out of pocket expenses. 
 
ii)   Relationship with the Authority: 
 
Under the SORP it is a wholly owned subsidiary of Barnet Council and is therefore required to 
consolidate the financial statements into the group financial statements on a 100% basis. As the 
Council holds all the share capital it is required to contribute £2 if the company is wound up. 
 
iii) Financial Performance: 
 
In 2005/6 the Company made an operating surplus of £617,199 (restated surplus of £314,768 – 
2004/05). 
 
iv) Transactions and services with the company: 
 
The Authority paid the Company £26.257m (£14.523m – 2004/05) for the provision of Housing and 
Environmental support. 
 
The Authority provides the following services for the Company:– 
 
The premises at Barnet House is subject to lease from the Authority and is charged as part of the 
management charge to Barnet Homes Ltd. 
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The Authority also provides various support services to Barnet Homes Ltd for which charges are 
made under service level agreements. 
 
4. Group Cash Flow Statement 
 
The group cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with the SORP 2004 rules and form part 
of the group statements. The group cash flow statement shows the movement of cash in and out of 
the group. However, cash flows relating internally to the group are eliminated as any intra-group 
gains and losses are eliminated. Only cash receipts and payments that flow to and from the group 
as a whole are included. 
 
5.  Elimination of the Asset Management Revenue Account (AMRA) 
 
The SORP 2004 requires notional interest charges, used to mark the full costs of tying up capital in 
fixed assets, and the government grants deferred to be reversed out and allocated to the services 
using the fixed assets for whose acquisition or enhancement the grants were given. This is because 
the capital accounting provisions of the SORP require services to show the full cost of holding fixed 
assets, irrespective of the method by which their acquisition was financed. This is also in line with 
UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP). Hence, the group CRA eliminates the 
AMRA line out completely, leaving only the external interest element payable. 
 
6.  Accounts 
 
Last year’s profit & loss and balance sheet statements for Barnet Homes Ltd have been restated to 
account for prior year adjustments relating to actuarial surpluses and movements in deferred tax on 
the pension scheme. These relate to FRS 17 Retirement Benefits. 
 
The financial accounts of Barnet Homes Ltd can be obtained from the Head of Financial Services of 
Barnet Homes Ltd, 9th Floor, Barnet House, 1255 High Street, Whetstone, London N20 0EJ. 
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SECTION 5 – Pension Fund 
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Pension Fund Financial Statements 
 

Administered under the Local Government Superannuation and Pension Fund Acts 
 

Pension Fund Account 
 

Notes
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Contributions and Similar Payments
Contributions receivable
                    – from employees 5, 2 7,147 8,029
                    – from employers 5, 2 20,360 22,122
  Transfers in 2, 4 6,578 34,085 7,999 38,150

Benefits and Similar Payments
  Pensions payable 2 (20,261) (18,452)
  Lump sum benefits payable 2 (5,142) (5,013)
  Death benefits 2 (438) (425)
  Refund of contributions 2 (105) (245)
  Transfers out 2, 4 (5,593) (3,947)
  Administration & other scheme expenses 8, 6 (703) (32,242) (1,082) (29,164)
Net Additions from dealings with Members 
of the Fund 1,843 8,986

Returns on Investments
  Investment Income 2, 4 14,021 11,795
  Change in market value of:- 7
   - realised investments 26,913 852
   - unrealised investments 48,747 27,250
  Investment management expenses 4, 6 (1,188) (1,097)
Tax payable / receivable (14) 73
  Net returns on investments 88,479 38,873
Net fund (decrease) / increase during the 
year 90,322 47,859
Opening net assets of the scheme 407,459 359,600
Closing net assets of the scheme 497,781 407,459

FUND ACCOUNT
2005/06 2004/05
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Notes to Pension Fund Statement 
 
1. Contributions 
 
Under the provisions of the Pension Scheme, the rate of contributions requested from employees is 
set at 6% (5% for manual workers who entered the scheme before 1st April 1998), and the employer's 
contribution rate is adjusted to bring the Fund to 100% funded level.  
 
The market valuation of assets for past service appraisal was £494.4m (2004/05 - £405.4m). This 
valuation indicates that assets held at 31st March 2006 were sufficient to cover 77% of the accrued 
liabilities assessed on an ongoing basis. The financial statements do not take account of liabilities to 
pay pensions and other benefits after the year-end. 
 
The fund should receive input sufficient to meet 100% of its overall liabilities (Local Government 
Superannuation (Amendment) Regulations 1993). The Government has allowed local authorities to 
decide themselves how long to phase in this requirement. Barnet has chosen a period of twenty 
years, which commenced 1stApril 2004. The actual employer’s contribution for 2005/06 was 
£19,989m. Without the phasing, employers’ contribution would have needed to be £24,055m equalling 
21.3% of pensionable pay. The cash received both from employers and employees is also shown. 
  

Employees' 
Contributions

Employers' 
Contributions

Equal to % of 
pensionable 

pay
Benefits 
Payable

2005/06 2005/06 2005/06
£'000 £'000 £'000

Administering authority 4,404 12,652 17.7 22,423
Scheduled bodies:
Middlesex University 1,442 4,019 17.8 2,631
Colleges 502 1,280 17.7 111
Barnet Homes 439 1,103 17.3 63

Admitted bodies:
NLCEN 2 5 9.1 0
Fremantle Trust 182 553 18.1 141
Friends of Moat Mount Campsite 0 1 16.0 0
Open Learning Partnership 17 23 11.7 0
Housing 21 98 232 15.1 33
Greenwich Leisure 36 78 13.0 1
Others 25 43
Additional Contributions for Early Retirement 0 371
Totals 7,147 20,360 25,403

 
2. Benefits 
 
Benefits are provided in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Pension Scheme, 
which states that retiring employees are entitled to a pension equal to 1/80 of their final salary for each 
full year of their employment, calculated on a daily basis and restricted to a maximum of 40/80ths of 
the employee's final salary. They are accounted for in the period in which they fall due. Full details of 
the other benefits payable can be seen on the Borough’s Intranet page at www.barnetpensions.org. 
 
3. Purchase and Sale of Investments 
 
The purchase and sale of investments is delegated to the fund managers and all settlements are 
accrued on the day of trading. Investments in the managed funds are valued at the average mid price 
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quoted by the fund managers, while investments in Property Unit Trusts are valued at mid market 
price.  
 
The two fund managers, Schroders and Henderson, are required to produce a return on investments 
within benchmarks set by the London Borough of Barnet, and must limit the amounts invested in each 
class of asset to ranges set by the Borough.  
 
These restrictions and the fund managers' analysis of the assets and issuing bodies, dictates the 
timing of sales and purchases of investments. Approximately 10.6% of the Fund is held in property 
unit trusts and cash arising from these unit trusts  is administered by the staff of the London Borough 
of Barnet acting on advice received from the Borough's independent investment advisor. 

 
4. Related Party Transactions 
 
The administration expenses of £703,000 shown in the main accounts above were incurred by the 
London Borough of Barnet and are broken down as follows: 
 

2005/06 2004/05
£'000 £'000

Human Resources pensions administration 567 742
Accountancy administration 0 45
Payroll 136 295
Payments 0 0
Total 703 1,082

 
 
(i) Human Resources - are the total cost of the section within HR administering pension’s 

entitlement and contributions.  
 
(ii) Accountancy Administration - is an apportionment of the salaries of the Core Accountancy 

team determined by the time spent by members of the team on administrative matters 
relating to the pension fund.  

 
(iii) Payroll – expenses determined by reference to the number of payslips processed.  

 
(iv) Payments - are established by apportioning the total cost of the Payments section according 

to the number of transactions generated by each section. 
 
There were no material transactions between the Fund and the Trustees of the Fund, or between the 
Fund and the senior officers of the Borough, during the financial years 2005/06 and 2004/05. 
 
5. Actuarial position 
 
The Local Government Superannuation Regulations 1986 set out legal requirements for actuarial 
valuations. Their main purpose is to assess the amount the Council must pay towards the fund’s 
liabilities.  
 
Hymans Robertson, the independent actuary to the fund, reviews the accounts every 3 years. The 
next full evaluation will take place in 2007. The interim valuation as at 31st March 2006 used the roll–
forward approach together with the following assumptions. Figures for 2004/05 have been included for 
comparison: 
 
6. Investment Transactions and Performance 
 
Purchases of investments during 2005/06 were £171.8m (2004/05 - £159.5m) and sales proceeds 
were £241.8m (2004/05 - £141.7m). Profits/(Losses) on realisation were £26.9m (£0.9m).  
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Net Assets Statement as at 31st March 2006 
 

Notes
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Investment Assets
Government securities - fixed interest 2, 6, 7 45,944 37,970
                                     - index linked 2, 6, 7 13,334 59,278 18,717 56,687
Non Government          - fixed interest 2, 6, 7 2,241 4,565
                                     - index linked 2, 6, 7 597 2,838 571 5,136
Property unit trusts 2, 6, 7 45,579 39,307
UK equities 2, 6, 7 185,092 161,758
Overseas equities / funds 2, 6, 7 86,311 104,916
Overseas bonds 2, 6, 7 2,243 319,225 5,680 311,661

381,341 373,484

Net Current Assets & Liabilities
 - sundry debtors 4 3,917 6,257
 - sundry creditors 4 (594) 3,323 (4,153) 2,104
Cash in hand 6 113,117 31,871

Total net assets 497,781 407,459

2005/06 2004/05

NET ASSETS STATEMENT AS AT 31st MARCH 2006
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Notes to Net Asset Statement 
 
1. Net current assets 
 
Net current assets at 31st March 2006 totalled £2.952m and comprised: 
 

Debtors Creditors Net
£'000 £'000 £'000

Settlements on purchases/sales 110 (95) 15
Contributions 1,189 0 1,189
Investment income 2,314 (92) 2,222
Fund manager’s fees 0 (225) (225)
Tax 304 0 304
Lump sum death and retirement benefits 0 (182) (182)
Total 3,917 (594) 3,323

 
 
The Fund’s financial statements do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other liabilities 
arising after the year end. The figure for contributions debtors includes amounts totalling £307,105.06 
(2004/05 - £373,584.75) due from Middlesex University. This represents one months’ outstanding 
contributions. These were paid to the Borough in April 2006 (April 2005).  
 
The independent Fund Advisor who monitors the fund managers on behalf of the council is paid a fee 
of £8,500 for the service during the financial year 2004/05 in advance. 
 
2. Management of the Fund 
 
The Pension Fund includes the costs, charges and expenses incurred in administering the Fund. The 
internal administration costs include the apportionment of the costs of the relevant central services of 
the Council.  
 
The Superannuation Fund Management Advisory Panel comprises of three elected Members 
appointed by the Council. This panel counsels the Deputy Director of Resources and Chief  
Finance Officer about the investment of the fund. The W.M. Company also provides an independent 
performance measurement service. 
 
Apart from internally managed holdings in property unit trusts, the fund is split equally between two 
balanced-fund managers, Henderson Global Investors and Schroders Investment Management. The 
fund managers report transaction details at quarterly meetings with the Advisory Panel. An 
independent fund advisor monitors the two fund managers for the Council.  
 
Cash in hand and the market value of funds as at 31st March 2006 held by the managers totalled 
£445.7m. Henderson held 47.7% of this and Schroders 52.3%. As mentioned above, the fund makes 
investments in property via property unit trusts. These amount to £49,509m including cash earned on 
the property investment. As specifically allowed in the regulations, all the fund’s day-to-day cash is 
invested by the Council. Interest totalling £1,483m (2004/05 - £1,141m) was paid at appropriate rates. 
 
The average cash balance held during the year was £31,932m (2004/05 - £24,761) and the average 
interest rate applied was 4.7% (4.6%), which represents the average 7-day rate. The average daily 
interest was £4,064.03 (£3,083.91). The year-end cash balance was £113,117m (2004/05 - 
£31,871m).  
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Current market valuation of the assets is based on current market convention where they are primarily 
traded. This is either the last traded or middle market price. When representative prices are 
unavailable, investments are valued on the most appropriate basis in the opinion of the relevant fund 
manager. 
 
 
 
3. Investment Transactions and Performance 
 
Purchases of investments during 2005/06 were £171.8m (2004/05 - £159.5m) and sales proceeds 
were £241.8m (2004/05 - £141.7m). Profits/(Losses) on realisation were £26.9m (£0.9m).  
 
As shown in the net asset statement, the fund invests in fixed interest stocks, UK equities, property 
and overseas equities and bonds. There were no investments in unlisted securities during 2005/06. 
 
The fund made a general return in 2005/06 of 22.6%. The W.M. Company’s statistics show that the 
average return for local authority pension funds was 24.9% and that Barnet was in the 88th percentile 
of funds measured. 
 
Performance of all pension funds was buoyed by a strong recovery after most major economies 
adjusted to absorb the impact of high oil prices in 2005/06. 
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General Notes & Accounting Policies 
 
Accounting standards 
 
The Fund’s accounts are complied in accordance with the principles set out in The Statement of 
Recommended Practise (SORP) on Pension Scheme Accounts and the CIPFA Code of Practise on 
Local Authority Accounting. 
 
Basis of preparation 
 
Income and expenditure are accounted for on an ongoing basis with the exception of liabilities to pay 
pension and other benefits in the future, and transfer values which are accounted for on a cash basis 
in accordance with accounting guidance. 
 
Fund Administration and Membership 
 
Barnet Council administers the Pension Fund under the provisions of the Local Government 
Superannuation Act and the Pension Fund Acts. At 31st March, there were 6,755 employees 
contributing to the fund with 5,525 in receipt of benefit and 4,556 entitled to deferred benefits. A 
Government scheme supplies teachers’ pensions; they are not provided for under these 
arrangements. 
 
Contributions from the council, include three scheduled bodies (Middlesex University and two 
colleges), The Friends of Moat Mount Campsite (admitted), The North London Colleges European 
Network (admitted) and the Fremantle Trust (admitted). Employees contributions and returns on 
investments balance the fund. Employees’ basic contributions are 6% of pay except for manual 
workers employed prior to 1st April 1998 for whom it is 5%. 
 
The funding policy is to ensure that the assets held by the scheme in the future are adequate to 
meet accrued liabilities allowing for future increases in pay and pensions. 
 
Transfers into and out of the Fund 
 
Transfers into the Fund are accounted for when received and undertaken at the request of staff 
joining the Borough or one of its admitted or scheduled bodies with pension rights accrued 
elsewhere. Transfers out are accounted for on the payment basis and performed upon request from 
staff leaving the employment of the Borough or one of its admitted or scheduled bodies who wish to 
transfer their accrued pension contributions to their new employer. Transfers are undertaken in 
accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Pension Scheme. 
 
Interest 
 
Interest is calculated on the cash held on behalf of the Pension Fund at a rate equivalent to 7 day 
LIBOR and added to the account of cash due to the Pension Fund on a monthly basis. Interest 
income from investments is accounted for on an accruals basis, if not received by year end. 
 
Investment expenses 
 
The fees for investment managers are paid in accordance with their management agreements 
 
Administration Expenses 
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These are a percentage of the London Borough of Barnet’s expenses plus the direct costs of the 
Pension’s section within the Human Resources department. 
 
Dividends 
 
Dividends are accounted for on an accruals basis, but are included in the accounts only when 
dividends are declared on or before 31 March and the amount to be paid is known. 
Foreign currency translation 
 
The valuation of foreign equities is calculated by using the overseas market price current at the 
relevant date and the exchange rate for the appropriate currency at the time to express the value as 
a sterling equivalent. Investments held in foreign currencies as at year ended 31st March 2006 have 
been translated at the rates prevailing. 
 
Statement of Investment Principles 
 
The Council approved the SIP for the fund in May 2000. The Statement can be viewed on the 
pension’s part of the Council’s website www.barnetpensions.org. Copies are also available from the 
Directorate of Resources. 
 
Prior Year Adjustments 
 
There were no prior year adjustments. 
 
Post Balance Sheet Events 
 
There were no post Balance sheet events in the year under consideration. 
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Glossary 
 
For the purpose of compiling the statement of accounts, the following definitions have been adopted: 
 
Accounting Policies 
 
Those principles, bases, conventions, rules and practises applied by an entity that specify how the effects 
of transactions and other events are to be reflected in its financial statements through: 
 
(i) recognising 
 
(ii) selecting measurement bases for, and  
 
(iii) presenting assets, liabilities, gains, losses and changes to reserves. 
 
Accounting policies define the process whereby transactions and other events are reflected in financial 
statements. For example, an accounting policy for a particular type of expenditure may specify whether 
an asset or a loss is to be recognised; the basis on which it is to be measured; and where in the revenue 
account or balance sheet it is to be presented. 
 
Actuarial Gains and Losses 
 
For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses that arise because: 
 
(a) events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last valuation (experience 

gains and losses), or 
 
(b) the actuarial assumptions have changed. 
 
Assets 
 
These can either be: 
 
• Fixed assets – tangible assets that give benefits to the authority for more than one year. 
 
• Community assets – assets that the local authority intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no 
determinable useful life and that may have restrictions on their disposal. Examples include parks and 
historic buildings. 

 
• Council Dwellings – these are owned by the Council providing services to the communities. Such 
examples include leisure centres, libraries and museums. 

 
• Vehicles – These assets are used by the Council for the direct delivery of services, such 
examples include dust carts. 

 
• Equipment – Held by the local authority in the delivery of those services for which it has either a 
statutory or discretionary responsibility or for the service or strategic objective of the authority.  
 
• Infrastructure assets – fixed assets that are inalienable, expenditure on which is recoverable only 
by continued use of the asset created. Examples of such fixed assets are highways and footpaths 
that cannot be transferred to another owner. 
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• Investment property – includes land and buildings held by the authority that are awaiting sale or 
development. This category also includes some property let on a commercial basis as well as some 
property that is for the good of the community. 
 
• Non-operational assets – fixed assets held by an authority but not used or consumed in the 
delivery of services or for the service or strategic objectives of the authority. Examples of non-
operational assets include investment properties and assets that are surplus to requirements, 
pending their sale. It should be noted that the incidence of rental income does not necessarily mean 
that the asset is an investment property; it would be deemed an investment property only if the asset 
is held solely for investment purposes and does not support the service or strategic objectives of the 
authority and the rental income is negotiated at arm’s length. 
 
Asset Management Revenue Account (AMRA) 
 
An account that capital accounting regulations requires the authority to maintain. All principal repayments 
and interest charges on loans are charged to this account. The AMRA is used to reverse out the capital 
charges for asset rentals made to the service accounts to leave only the annual external interest and 
principal repayments in the consolidated revenue account. 
 
Associate Company 
 
An organisation is an associate of a parent local authority where the authority holds a long term, 
participatory interest and is in a position to exercise a significant but not dominant influence over that 
organisation. 
 
Benefits 
 
Benefits can be received in the form of future economic benefits or in the form of service potential. Assets 
that are used to deliver goods and services in accordance with the reporting authority’s objectives but 
which do not directly generate net cash inflows can be described as embodying ’service potential’. Assets 
that are used to generate net cash inflows can be described as embodying ‘future economic benefits’. 
 
Capital Charges 
 
A charge to service revenue accounts to reflect the cost of fixed assets used in the provision of services. 
 
Capital Expenditure 
 
Expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset or expenditure which adds to and not merely maintains the 
value of an existing fixed asset. 
 
Defined Benefit Scheme 
 
A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution scheme. Usually, the 
scheme rules define the benefits independently of the contributions payable, and the benefits are not 
directly related to the investments of the scheme. The scheme may be funded or unfunded 
(including notionally funded). 
 
Defined Contribution Scheme 
 
A pension or other retirement benefit scheme into which an employer pays regular contributions fixed as 
an amount or as a percentage of pay and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further 
contributions if the scheme does not have sufficient assets to pay all employees benefits relating to 
employee service in the current y ear and prior periods.  
 
Depreciation 
 
The measure of the cost or revalued amount of the benfits of the fixed asset that have been consumed 
during the period. 
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Consumption includes the wearing out, using up or other reduction in the useful life of a fixed asset 
whether arising from use, effluxion of time or obsolescence through either changes in technology or 
demand for the goods and services produced by the asset. 
 
Events After the Balance Sheet Date 
 
Events after the balance sheet date are those events, favourable or unfavourable, that occur between the 
balance sheet date and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue.   
 
 
Fixed Asset Restatement Account 
 
An account showing the surpluses or deficits on revaluation of fixed assets. This reserve is not available 
for general use in the financing of capital expenditure. 
 
FRS’s 
 
Financial reporting standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board requiring information to be 
shown in accounts. 
 
General Fund 
 
The main revenue fund of the authority, it shows income from and expenditure on the council’s day to day 
activities. It excludes the provision of housing that must be charged to a separate housing revenue 
account. 
 
Government Grants 
 
The amounts of money the authority receives from the Government and inter-government agencies to 
help fund both general and specific activities. 
 
Government Grants Deferred 
 
Capital grants that are credited to the balance sheet and amortised to revenue over the life of the relevant 
assets to offset charges made for depreciation. 
 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 
The account which shows the income from and expenditure on the provision of council housing. Other 
services are charged to the general fund. 
 
Joint Venture 
 
A joint venture is where a parent local authority holds an interest on a long term basis in an organisation 
and that organisation is jointly controlled by the local authority and one or more other entities under a 
contractual arrangement. 
 
Leases 
 
These may be finance leases that transfer the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the authority. 
Alternatively they may be operating leases that are more akin to a hire agreement. 
 
Liabilities 
 
Amounts the authority either owes or anticipates owing to others, whether they are due for immediate 
payment or not. 
 
Long-term Contracts 
 
A contract entered into for the design, manufacture or construction of a single substantial asset or the 
provision of a service (or a combination of assets or services which together constitute a single project), 
where the time taken substantially to complete the contract is such that the contract activity falls into 
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different accounting periods. Some contracts with a shorter duration than one year should be accounted 
for as long-term contracts if they are sufficiently material to the activity of the period. 
 
Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) 
 
The MRA is a government subsidy that was introduced to replace Housing Revenue Account borrowing 
for repairs. 
 
 
 
Major Repairs Reserve (MRR) 
 
This reserve is for capital expenditure on HRA assets. 
 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
 
Statute requires revenue accounts to be charged with a minimum revenue provision of 4% for general 
fund and 2% for the housing revenue account as a notional redemption cost of all external loans. 
 
Net Book Value 
 
The amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet, ie their historical cost or current 
value less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation. 
Operational Assets 
 
Fixed assets held and occupied, used and consumed by the local authority in the direct delivery of those 
services for which it has either a statutory or discretionary responsibility or for the service or strategic 
objectives of the authority. 
 
Prior Period Adjustments 
 
Those material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes in accounting policies or from 
the correction of fundamental errors. A fundamental error is one that is of such significance as to destroy 
the validity of the financial statements. They do not include normal recurring corrections or adjustments of 
accounting estimates made in prior years. 
 
Precept 
 
The amount of income demanded of the collection fund by an authority entitled to such income. 
 
Preceptor 
 
An authority entitled to demand money of the collection fund. The preceptors on Barnet’s collection fund 
are the council itself and the Greater London Authority. 
 
Provisions 
 
Amounts held in reserve against specific potential liabilities or losses where there is uncertainty as to 
amounts and/or due dates. Payment to a provision is counted as service expenditure. 
 
Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) 
 
A Government body that lends money to local authorities for periods in excess of one year, often at 
preferential interest rates. 
 
Rateable Value 
 
Assessment by the Inland Revenue of a property’s value from which rates payable is calculated. 
 
Related Parties 
 
Two or more parties are related parties when at any time during the financial period: 
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(i) one party has direct or indirect control of the other; or 
 
(ii) the parties are subject to common control from the same source; or 
 
(iii) one party has influence over the financial and operational policies of the other party to the extent 

that the other party might be inhibited from pursuing at all times its own separate interests; or 
 
(iii) the parties, in entering a transaction, are subject to influence from the same source to such an 

extent that one of the parties to the transaction has subordinated its own separate interest. 
 
Related Party Transactions 
 
A related party transaction is the transfer of assets or liabilities or the performance of services by, to 
or for a related party irrespective of whether a charge is made. Examples of related party 
transactions include: 
 
(i) the purchase, sale, lease, rental or hire of assets between relate parties. 
 
(ii) the provision by a pension fund to a related party of assets of loans, irrespective of any direct 

economic benefit to the pension fund 
 
(iii) the provision of a guarantee to the third party in relation to a liability or obligation of a related 

party 
 
(iv) the provision of services to a related party, including the provision of pension fund 

administration services 
 
(v) transactions with individuals who are related parties of an authority or a pension fund, except 

those applicable to other members of the community or the pension fund, such as Council 
Tax, rents and payments of benefits. 

 
Reserves 
 
Amounts prudently held to cover potential liabilities. Payments to reserves are not counted as service 
expenditure. Payments from reserves are passed through service revenue accounts, cf. provisions. 
Earmarked reserves are allocated for a specific purpose. Unallocated reserves are described as 
balances. 
 
Revenue Support Grant 
 
A government grant paid towards the cost of general fund services. It is the authority’s largest single 
source of income. 
 
SSAP’s 
 
Standard statements of accounting practice. These are agreed by accounting bodies and describe 
standard treatment to be used in the preparation of accounts. They are gradually being replaced by 
FRS’s. 
 
Stocks 
 
The amount of unused or unconsumed stocks held in expectation of future use. When use will not 
arise until after a later period, it is appropriate to carry forward the amount to be matched to the use 
or consumption when it arises.  
 
Subsidiary 
 
An organisation is a subsidiary of a parent local authority if the authority has either a majority share in the 
organisation or exercises a dominant influence over it. 
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Substance over Form 
 
Financial Reporting Standard 5  requires that the substance (real effect on the authority) of a 
transactions is reported rather than just actual monetary movements (substance over form) at the 
time they happen. That is future liabilities or gains are recognised in the accounts when thy are 
incurred rather than just when paid for or received.  
 
This largely refers to assets where benefits or liabilities of ownership pass without legal title or they 
may endow future liabilities or gains. In Barnet’s case for instance a lease agreement’s transactions 
will show the actual amount paid or received in the year, but  there is a liability for future payments or 
receipts for the life of the lease,  these are recognised in the accounts.  
 
Useful life 
 
The period over which the local authority will derive benefits from the use of fixed asset. 
 


